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EDITORIAL

We are pleased to publish this, the fourth editbour journal
Coiseanna

This edition includes articles covering a rangeapiics. Three
articles deal with the Clane area’s long associatwth horse
breeding and racing. Blackhall Stud located unaaly on

the Sallins Road has produced a series of suctessfu
thoroughbreds; reminiscences of Punchestown owerydars
and the exploits of Joseph Delemere Whyte a famous
nineteenth century horseman.

The Clongowes Wood College connection is featumed
articles about James Joyce’s time there, the tistgiy of Old
Clongownian Michael J Casey who was murdered by the
Gestapo in the aftermath of the famous ‘Great Escdpring
World War Il and some poetry by Andy McGann a forme
watchman at Clongowes who wrote a distinctive tyfe
English doggerel.

Architectural features are addressed with artictes the
restoration of the ‘Abbey’, the old bridge and fasder the
Liffey and historic residences in the Clane area.

Articles on social history range from the ratheghtening
Molly Maguires to the Jubilee Nurses who providedistrict
nursing service in the decades before the Stateanbec
involved but are now almost forgotten.

We would like to thank those who have providedctet for
this fourth edition. For the Journal’'s continuation future
years we need a supply of articles relating to €land the
wider area and would appeal for contributionss Iparticularly
important that recent social history is recordetbizeit passes
from living memory. We urge anyone who feels tlmatyt could
contribute to next year’s edition or have commaeanrtsany of
the articles to email jimheffernan@eircom.net @rcbntact
any member of the editorial committee listed onfitet page.
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SOME CLANE RESIDENCES AND THEIR OWNERS
Pat Given

Clane and its surroundings are rich in local hgatand in
particular in the number of fine old houses whidacg its
pleasant landscape thus proving that today’s vetrslagan of
‘Clane-a nice place to live’ was equally appro@iatany years
ago. This article seeks to bring focus on someetekaown
local residences whose origins and heritage in toistext
deserve our commemoration.

In the seventeenth-century Clane’s land ownershii s
retained the pattern acquired during and after Amglo
Norman period when ownership of property to the twaexd
south west of the village was divided into two lwt@aeas:

Clane West Clane South-West
Owners Modern Owners Modern
Townlands Townlands
Curryhills George Fitzgerald Firmount
16" Earl of Kildare
. Killybegs Millicent
Dongan Family William Sarsfield
Longtown Hoganswood

Eustace Family

Lying to the west of Clane, the townlands of Cuiltgh
Killybegs and Longtown in pre-Cromwellian times wen the
ownership of the Dongan familyAs Catholics they became
heavily involved in the 1641 wars. Dongans subsetyéost
their property to Cromwellian adventurers and so 1659
Curryhills was owned by John Devenishe, Longtowrs wee
property of George Carter and Killybegs was in tiaeds of
Nathaniel StraughtohAfter the restoration of the monarchy in
1660, William Dongan was made Viscount of Clane and
regained his family’s properties. In the Williamitears,
William Dongan, a Jacobite, availed of the Tredtyionerick
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to depart for France and his property was agairfismated.
His brother, Thomas later successfully reclaimesifamily’s
property but lost it again since one of the coodsi of
recovery forced the Dongans to sell their prop&rhych was
next purchased by the Hamilton family.

Curryhills House

Lena Boylan has linked the building of Curryhillolte with
the visionary Robert Brooks and his project to dprine cotton
industry to the Kildare village which he had re-reain
Prosperous. Brooks returned from India where he Iheeh
financially successful and in 1776 he invested app£18,000
in his project. His enterprise was not a succedsraduly 1786

Curryhills House

he was forced to dispose of his assets. He waggubéstly
appointed Governor of St Helena and he held that pdth
honour until 1801. He returned to England wherdibd in
1811. The land registry records in 1801 show thatydills
House was owned by Michael Hayes who had madeisne
as a master stone-mason, building property in ihage of
Prosperous and later some of the locks on the Gtamal. In
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1801, Gilbert Sutcliff was tenant and by 1822 Hagess had
leased it to Thomas Radcliff. By the 1850s the prigpwas in
the hands of Elizabeth Turner. Elizabeth was darglof
Catherine Vincent who married Robert Stamer and waod
become a widow in 1798 when he, a J.P for countgafe,
was killed at Downing’s House.

Elizabeth in turn leased Curryhills to Malachy Gsatwvhose
grave is to be found in Millicent churchyard. Cunitis was
then purchased by Patrick MonagHan.

Longtown

Longtown House

Anthony Byrne a long-time resident in Longtown po®d a
history of its ownership to the Clane Local Hist@youp in
September 2011. A summary of that talk follows:

1709 Longtown passed from the Dongan to the Hamilton
family

1714 John Mills leased the property from the Hamilton
family.



c. 1730John and Rev Benjamin Digby, Osberstown leased
some of the property.

1752 Francis Savage and George Burdett leased the Digby
interest in the property.

c. 1780George Percy Putland became landlord of the
property and leased it ‘to three Prendergasts,|€harNeill,
Thomas Guy, and Jeffrey Samuel’[sic].

1828 Putland died and was replaced by his beneficiaries
Charlotte von Wylie, Grace von Losecke (Hanovenna
Campbell (Surrey), Catherine Hassell (Pau), He@fiarman
(Paris).

1833-4 George Burdett leased his part of the property t
Michael Sweetman of Dublin. Anthony Byrne suggéiséd
Longtown may have been built or modified by Burdsdtbut
this time.

1852 Michael Sweetman died and his son Patrick inherite
the property.

1856 Patrick Sweetman together with Anne Barfoud
Digby) and Elizabeth Digby obtained a ‘fee farmrgraver
that part of Longtown (453 acres) which had beasdd to
Jeffrey Prendergast.

1858 The Commissioners for Encumbered Estates sold
Longtown on behalf of Madame von Losecke (Hanover),
Antonio and Helena Offerman (Paris) and Frederiakn@bell
(Paris) and it was purchased by Patrick Sweetmaf&@50.
Jeffrey Samuel Prendergast was sitting tenantatitne.

1885 Patrick Sweetman died and Edmund Sweetman
inherited the property as well as shares in thedisaCourt
Brewery in Dublin.

1913 On Edmund Sweetman’s death, his nephew James
inherited the property. James, in turn, left ibte four children
Gerard, Seamus, Myra, and Denis when he died i8.193
1948 Gerard Sweetman was Ireland’s Minister for Finance
during the years 1954-7. In 1970, he died tragrdalla car
accident.

2004 Longtown was purchased by the Irish Department of
Agriculture, Food and the Marine and now housesti®nal
Central Veterinary Research Farm.
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The ruin of Longtown House dwarfs the house underanstruction to replace it

Killybegs®

Killybegs is the third portion of the former Dongdamily
property in Clane and developed around the sitanog&arlier
Knights Hospitallers’ commandery. The Knights Hadalbers
were one of five military orders who participatedie early

Killybegs House

Crusades and a sister organisation, the Knightslaita, are
still an active organisation. The Knights Hospéedl came to
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Ireland with the Norman invasion around 1172. kdnd, as
elsewhere, their primary duty was to provide hadit to

pilgrims and travellers, but because of the ongoaigellion by
the Irish after the Norman invasion they often dae military
outposts on the borders of the Anglo-Norman taigto

In county Kildare there were three such establistiimyeone at
Killybegs another at Kilteel, and the third at il The Order
left Killybegs during the Reformation in June 158&en

Nicholas Stanyhurst leased ‘Kylbegge’ at a rentEd0 per

annum’

As Robert Brookes accumulated property for his arott
manufacture he also sought a private residence leaskd
Killybegs from Charles O’Neill of Dublin.

From the photo above (kindly provided by the Cuamily to
Lena Boylan) it is apparent that the, now demolishe
Killybegs House was brick built. Boylan talks oetimterior of
the house as having a large ballroom, dining roouh laright
airy basements which were ‘so unlike their gloomy
counterparts in other Georgian houses.’ It is r@edrthat the
basements ‘to all areas’ were ten feet high. LBaoglan
records that the stairway was reinstated in a Duptoperty
while the marble fireplaces went to the United &at

With the failure of Brooke’s enterprise and his adpre in
1788, Charles O’Neill granted the lease on the @oasd
property to Edward Fitzgerald of Carrigoran, couare.
Edward’s son, Sir William Fitzgerald subsequentbidnthe
lease until his death in 1847. His widow, Lady Eael
Cumming Fitzgerald had her lease renewed in 1849.9dn,
Sir George Cumming Fitzgerald resided at Killybegsil the
property was purchased by Patrick Curry in 1918diAg the
old house too difficult to maintain, Bernard Curigon of
Patrick Curry demolished it in 1957.
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Firmount House, Moatfield and Strawberry Lodge
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'A}éﬁiieéts drawing of Firmount House 1878

The second set of properties runs in a linear éasisiouth-
westwards starting from the outskirts of Clane dre t
Prosperous road. Strawberry Lodge [aka Viewmoumifl a
Moatfield were all originally part of the Firmoumeistate but
were later separated into individual propertiesmeunt House
is the earliest of these properties and has arltistdending as
far back as the fourteenth century. O’Farrell, is History of
county Kildarementions the house as one of Kildare's early
fortified house$. Reminders of this role are still evident in the
robust structural features which remain in the bese of to-
day’s house.

With the granting of favours by William, a new toland
Firmount, appeared in the Clane landscape. During t
Williamite Confiscations, Firmount estate was ceeabut of
portions of those townlands formerly owned by thel& of
Kildare, the Eustaces and Sarsfield families. afiti what we
now call ‘Firmount’ was given the name ‘Greensbgiwubut
this was later changed to ‘Firmount’ on its acdiosi by the
Warburton family in 1707 and who continued to owruntil
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1855. The Warburton name appears in a decree afd€hain
February 1635 when Richard Warburton, a Dublin imanc,
provided a loan of £8,000 to King Charles I. A mooeplete
history of Firmount House may be found in my adicl
‘Firmount Demesne and its House’ @oiseannallll (2014),
pp 67-76.

Moatfield

A deed signed on 8 May 1793 shows that Edward CreWao
was then in occupancy in Firmount House, sub-lat portion
of the lands at Firmount known as Moatfield contagnfifty
acres and the ‘new dwelling house, stables, outexffand
improvements made thereon’ for a yearly rent diE: 15.
to Thomas Christmas of Waterfotdfhe house is not shown
on Taylor's earlier map of 1783 so it is probaliattit was
constructed in the intervening ten years. In Noverni855 the
Moatfield property was auctioned off as part of gee of
Firmount by the Commissioners of the Incumbereditestin
Ireland. The sale of Moatfield was completed whenHW
Glennon of Harold’s Cross paid a deposit of £1,868inst the
total sum due of £2,350 in February 1856. When @en
purchased the property the sitting tenant was &tefarney
who had leased it in 1851 for a term of fourteeargeat an
agreed rent of £63. An inscription to the Glennovas/ be seen
in the Abbey cemetery Clane and when John OrmerGlen
died in June 1905 the modern history of Moatfiebddn.

ERECTED BY DEBORAH HiLL OF WILLMOUNT HOWTH ROAD DUBLIN TO HER
MOTHER GEORGINA GLENNON D. 24™ JuLy 1894;

ALSO SISTER ELIZABETH GLENNON D. 24" APRIL 1885, BROTHER WILLIAM ORME
GLENNON D. 1865 AND JOHN ORME GLENNON (MOATFIELD, CLANE) D. 23" JUNE
1905
THIS TOMB MARKS THE BURIAL GROUND OF DAVID EDGES MOATFIELD, 15" APR.
1821, AGED 66

Strawberry Lodge

In 1741, George Warburton of Firmount House enténéa a

number of land transactions which relate to theerty known

as Viewmount. Warburton had leased a portion ombunt,

known as Firmount East, and a smaller parcel ofl lah
13



Buttersteam to William Dunn. William Dunn subleteth
property to Edmond Dowling a farmer of Clane. Dumas a
tallow chandler and had his place of business ideB6&t. in
Dublin. In a second deed Warburton agreed to Dunn’s
reassignment of the lease to John Eustace of thefcDublin
who had been Sovereign of Naas in 1719. The ldgeed by
John on that occasion does not mention any buildimghe
property and the lease was witnessed by Lewis €dffie] of
Firmount who is described as a farm®&dohn Eustace died in
1769 but the lease he signed in 1741 was to cantimiil the
1855 sale of the property under the Incumberedt&s@ourt.
Just eleven years after the signing of the 174%eledoth
Noble and Keenan’s map of 1752 and later, Taylorap of
1783, clearly show a house at the site of StrawHdevdge.
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StraWberry Lodge as shown in Griffith’s Valuation

Strawberry Lodge first became associated with theing
industry on 3rd and 4th July 1835, when it hostézh€ Races.
A grand stand had been erected near the winning pog
weather was fine and the Kildare Observer saybeidst day
‘Tripping on the light fantassie toe was kept up $ome time
with great spirit in the various tents which wereated in the
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grounds...[all] prolonged the pleasures of the fesbweard till
a late hour. A large party was also entertaine&tedwberry
Lodge.’

Robert Shearman, Strawberry Lodge’s next tenargetbdahe
property on 25February 1843. Colonel Shearman held the
lease from the Eustaces and he in turn had sublettil the
1860s, when J.D Whyte a local politician with numes other
interests, occupied the property after its enfoisad under the
Incumbered Estates Court. Whyte changed the namtheof
property to ‘Viewmount’ and his career as jockeytotd in
John Noonan’s article in this edition @Qfoiseanna In 1887
Whyte was recorded as being the vice president laheC
Athletic Sports Club and he attempted to reviveshomcing in
Clane when a Steeplechase course was laid outtbgetwo
adjoining properties of Viewmount and Moatfield. QY
August 1887 the following appeared in tddare Observer

CLANE STEEPLECHASES

Voder the Irish National Hunt Steeplechass Eules,
over Course made on tha

LAND3 OF MOATFIELD & VIEWMOUNT,
Taid gt ander the Supsrintendenco of
: . Mt R M-E. Wartzza,

L

HE MEETING will be beld on MONDAY, the
T 7th XOVEMBER, and will comprisefive ereats,
__ fall pantioulars of which will appear in fotare ane

podoétmanla,
wdge—Me T. BRINDLEY.
;Hm Suﬂ:t and Hen Sec. :—2Mr J. D, WHYTE,

Cl
?’mm:' Er::n gﬂ-—ﬂt E.EELLY.

Although well able to pay his tax liabilities, heasvevicted
from Viewmount during the period of the land agdatin the
1880s and he received an apology and compensatia8d8
for the episode. A member of the Naas Board of Giaas he
held the position of vice chairman for a numbey@érs but in
spite of his efforts to improve sanitary and wagervices in
Clane he was not elected under the new Local Gawenh Act
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of 1899. Until his death in 1912 his role as anicdtural
contractor meant that his steam traction enginestlareshing
machines with their sleeping vans for the employesame a
familiar sight on local autumn roads.

The purpose of this short essay is to outline thenerous
historical changes in the land ownership pattenmnthé Clane
area. As outlined the major drivers have been thigiqal
upheavals which first occurred with the coming dfe t
Normans and later the many land transactions ofatter half
of the seventeenth century. The financial criseschwhhe
Incumbered Estate Acts of the 1840s and 1850s s$aiagh
address combined with the Land Acts of the end rhef t
nineteenth century finally re-moulded Clane’s lawinership
patterns and gave it many residences which atecstle found
here.

! The Parrish of Kilbeggs’ in Simington, R.C., (edlhe civil survey,1654-
6 (10 vols, Dublin, 1931-61), viii, p.154.

2 Lena Boylan, ‘Prosperous-Landlords and Tenahtsirnal of the County
Kildare Archaeological Societyyi, no.3 (1981-2), pp 241-63.

3 Pat Given, ‘Viscount Dongan of Clar@biseannd (2012), pp 71-5.

* Lena Boylan, ‘Prosperous- Landlords and Tenad@®KAS, xvi no.3
(1981/2), pp 241-63.

® Source: Lena Boylan, ‘Prosperous- Landlords and Tenad@KAS, xvi
no.3 (1981/2), p. 260.

® Archdeacon Sherlock, ‘Knights Hospitallers in culildare’ JCKAS vi
no.1 (1909), p 92.

"Rev. M Comerford, Collections relating to the disee of Kildare and
Leighlin (2" series, Dublin, 1886), p.79.

8 padraic O’FarrellA history of county Kildar¢Dublin, 2003), p. 29.
®Memorial of indented deed of lease, Edw. CrokeFliomas Christmas, 8
May 1793 (Registry of Deeds, Book 466. page 4262080263).

19 See memorials of indented deeds of lease, Georgbuffan to William
Dunn, 5 December 1741 (Registry of Deeds, Book. Ii¥ye 95, no.
72872) and George Warburton to John Eustace, 23e®épr 1741
(Registry of Deeds), Book 105, page 475, no.74376
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JAMES JOYCE'S SCHOOLDAYS IN KILDARE
Bruce Bradley SJ

In the opening pages of his semi-autobiographicaleh A
Portrait of the Artist as a Young Mapublished in 1916, by
which time he was living in Zurich, James Joyceicdsphis
fictional counterpart Stephen Dedalus sitting atgiace in the
study hall in Clongowes, counting down the daystle
Christmas holidays. He looks at what he had wrigarier on
the flyleaf of his geography book:

'Stephen Dedalus

Class of Elements
Clongowes Wood College
Sallins

County Kildare

Ireland

Europe

The World

The Universe'.

Joyce, as his later history would amply demonstratel a
highly developed sense of place. His passage throug
Clongowes in the closing years of the nineteentiturg will
have gone completely unnoticed beyond the collegesy in
Sallins (which he names in his grandiose self-ifieation
because it was then the correct postal address)jelisas a
mile and a half down the road in the local villagfeClane.
When he arrived in Clongowes at the end of Aug@&8] he
was a mere 6% (‘Half past six', as he told therabogs, too
young to distinguish between telling his age aradirey the
clock — for a while that became his nickname). wée still not
yet ten when he left, somewhat abruptly, nevertarn, three
years and a term later, just before Christmas 18#dile he
was actually there, like his fellow-pupils in thosays he
would have had little or no contact with the peopfethe
village and they could have had no idea that a Istmay
destined to be one of the greatest writers of timgligh
language was in their midst.

17



That is not to say, however, that Clane left norespion on
him. By his time, the railway system, which had been
developing since the 1830s - mostly under the aagi¥illiam
Dargan, whose brother's descendant, Fr William &ar§J,
would much later be rector of Clongowes — had gaHgu
opened up the country. Travelling by horse-drawar','che
would have passed through Clane on his way to eord the
railway station at Sallins, some four-and-a-haliemiaway,
where the Dublin train stopped on its way to thetlkwest.
Few as the occasions were, with his powers of in&gin and
recall, he did not forget the experience or hiseenf the local
people he glimpsed on the way. He briefly recordes
impressions in his 1916 novel.

Stephen Dedalus thinks about what it was like fe boys
when they went home for the Christmas holidayse Thars
drove past the chapel and all caps were raisedy theve
merrily along the country roads. The drivers paimnégth their
whips to Bodenstown. The fellows cheered. They grhsbe
farmhouse of the Jolly Farmer. Cheer after chetar aheer.
Through Clane they drove, cheering and cheered.pEasant
women stood at the halfdoors, the men stood hedetlzare.
The lovely smell there was in the wintry air: thenedl of
Clane: rain and wintry air and turf smouldering aodduroy'.

These were some of the same people he had eatalad
seeing in 'the chapel' at Clongowes (what we knoday as
'the People's Church’, but which was then the dcbioapel
proper). (Needless to say, and even allowing fer ¢hildish
naiveté of Stephen which Joyce wishes to convdiliststage
of his development in the novel, the term 'peasanised here
purely in the French sensemdysan 'country dweller', with no
pejorative connotation whatsoever). He thinks ef'tdold night
smell in the chapel. But it was a holy smell. Itsneot like the
smell of the old peasants who knelt at the badkefchapel at
Sunday mass. That was a smell of air and rain arfdahd
corduroy. But they were very holy peasants. Thegatired
behind him and sighed as they prayed. They liveGlane, a
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fellow said: there were little cottages there aedhlad seen a
woman standing at the halfdoor of a cottage withi&d in her
arms, as the cars had come past from Sallins'.

/o B
\

|

q

o= gat e
The Boys’ Chapel (now the People’s Church) circa B®; in The Portrait
of the Artist as a Young ManJoyce refers to the presence at Mass of
peasants from Clane ‘smelling of air and rain andurf and corduroy’.

He allows himself a moment of sensuous reveriavdtld be
lovely to sleep for one night in that cottage beftne fire of
smoking turf, in the dark lit by the fire, in theamm dark,
breathing the smell of the peasants, air and rathtarf and
corduroy'. But his feelings quickly turn to fear laes thinks of
how 'the road there between the trees was dark!Wauld be
lost in the dark’. And we are reminded that thase the
musings of a very small boy in his first few weeksa big
boarding-school, where he knows nobody, lonely fancway
from home.

But over time, Joyce's — and Stephen's — homessknere
off. As a new boy, he was not alone. Thirty-sevémeoboys
came into the most junior, 'Elements’, class wdmds Joyce
that autumn. Twenty-two of the new boys were fronbln;
two each from Antrim, Kerry, Meath, Mayo, Westmeaiind
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Wicklow (including Joyce himself, living in Bray #te time);
and one each from Cork, Galway, 'King's Countyi(i@ffaly)
and Tyrone.

There were, of course, boys from Kildare in theosthbut
none in Joyce's own class. One we know of fromniheel, a
little senior to him, appears under the pseudonymickname
(it is hard to tell which) of Athy, identified ag®&miah O'Neill,
who came from the town of that name. Stephendinsbunters
him when they are both invalids in the infirmarythjx asks
him a riddle: 'Why is the county Kildare like thegl of a
fellow's breeches?' Stephen, perhaps not quitenupisolocal
geography at this early stage, is stumped.

Friendships were formed with the likes of Dublineody
Kickham and, a later entrant, Tom Furlong (thougmen of
those he was at school with at this early stageiofife seem
to have remained his friends later on) and hiserane the
school gradually took off. The evidence and theorep of
contemporaries highlight the difference (alwaysdanger of
being disregarded) between Joyce himself and hsesdat
priggish, solitary literary creation, Stephen DedalAlthough
he soon emerged as a particularly able studerdlsoegot into
trouble from time to time, as the 'Punishment Bookthe
college archives testifies — never an entirely Hadg for a
bright boy in danger of attracting hostile attenti&s a 'swot'.
(When he and the other smallest boy in the schooligo

20



trouble, the joke among the boys was that 'Furlang Joyce
would not for long rejoice’. He wasn't the only omko was
good at puns!) Apart from more mundane infractibsied in
the register, there is a memorable entry showirdg e was
'pandied' on 14 March 1889, just past his seventh birthday, for
the — in his case - wonderfully prophetic crime "aflgar
language'. The rough-and-tumble of 'gravel footpalhybrid,
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The Pumshment Book for 14 March 1889

home-grown code which in time made way for rugbyl an
'socker’, did not appeal to him but he was a mioa@ usually
gifted singer, who performed at concerts, and ok foart in
theatricals. He made his First Holy Communion andsw
confirmed (taking the name of the college's patr@t,
Aloysius) and served as boat-bearer at Benedictn8aturday
evenings.

All these events took place within the — quite astee -
confines of the college itself. But the boys werd antirely
restricted to barracks, as it were, and also habpnities to
explore some of the countryside around them whewg thent
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out on occasional supervised walks to nearby \eagnd other
places of interest in the vicinity. Straffan Housew the 'K’
Club, and known to the boys in the 1890s by its @wgnname,
was one such destination, as Joyce recalls whevrites in A
Portrait of 'the smell of evening in the air, the smelltbé
fields in the country where they digged up turrtippeel them
and eat them when they went out for a walk to Major
Barton's...'

The rhythms and alternations of the school yearlavtave

become second nature to him. At the end of each (drere
were no Easter holidays), he made his way throughewith

the others to the railway station in Sallins andtorthe train
for Dublin and home. 'The train', as Stephen renezsd it,

‘was full of fellows... The guards went to and fspening,

closing, locking, unlocking the doors... And thaitrraced on
over the flat lands and past the Hill of Allen. Ttedegraph
poles were passing, passing. The train went on andIt

knew'. Home to what he calls 'his father's hols&'.more than
three years, this was 1 Martello Terrace, Braypadgaddress
in the salubrious seaside resort where Joyce kad Bince he
was five. Then, in October 1891, there was a change

nearby Leoville, 23 Carysfort Avenue. It was nat far away
but, despite the growing size of the family (byrthbere were
seven children and there would be three more)ag assmaller
house and the change was a harbinger of thingsne.c

Behind the scenes and presumably unknown to thdrehj

even James, the eldest and his father's undoudwedrite, Mr
Joyce's fortunes were in steep decline. The Cloegofees
were paid more and more slowly and eventually noalh
Some combination of this fact, a change of reatemfFr John
Conmee (later benignly remembered in Joyce's nbigbses,

to the probably less amenable Fr Matthew Devitd, thie death
of his father's political hero and patron Parnelthe time of
the family's move from Bray, seems to have beennibethe
decision to withdraw James from Clongowes at the anthe
Christmas term in December 1891.
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In chapter two ofA Portrait of the Artist as a Young Man
Joyce writes of Stephen that 'in a vague way herstood that
his fatherwas in trouble and that this was the reason why he
himself had not been sent back to Clongowes'. @bethat he
was not returning to the school, meant — in théodmalised
chronology of the novel — that 'the coming of Sepier did
not trouble him'. When alternative schooling iscdissed at the
table in Stephen's presence by his parents, 'th&ioneof
Clongowes ... coated his palate with a scum of disglike
reader is given to understand how glad he is te heft. This
is of a piece with the confected portrait of Stephs unhappy
in the school, which, as noted, does not accuratefliect
Joyce's own experience.

The glimpse we are given only a little earlier o¢f@en 'sitting

at his table in Bray', trying unsuccessfully to tera poem
about Parnell, in the wake of a furious family rower the
Christmas dinner-table, reveals what Joyce himsalfly felt

in the weeks after his removal from the schools 'Hrain’,
Joyce tells us, '.... refused to grapple with themeand,
desisting, he had covered the page with the nammes a
addresses of certain of his classmates: Roderickhi&m, John
Lawton, Anthony MacSwiney, Simon Moonan'.These were
boys (given their own names, except in Moonan's)chs had
just suddenly had to leave behind in Clongowestliar last
time and that is what explains the moody nostalfithe
moment.

He was never to see the place, or visit Clane hagait he did
not forget the school. In the great novel of histurgy,
Ulysses published in 1922, but set in 1904, which wam#ke
him world-famous, an older Stephen Dedalus is rdetdnof
Clongowes at various points during the long 'ddyt&)' June:
in the Martello Tower in the early morning, on Samdunt
Strand a little later, in the office of thgeemannewspaper at
noon, at the National Library after lunch, in Hsll&treet
Maternity Hospital (which had been founded by hefiofv-
Clongownian Andrew Horne in 1894) in the late ewgniin
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the brothel in 'Nighttown' at midnight and, finallyjn Mr
Bloom's house in Eccles St in the small hours.

The college is also evoked in Fr Conmee's reves@uihis
days as rector there in the 'Wandering Rocks' dpisblow
living in the Jesuit presbytery in Gardiner St,viiglks out on
an errand of mercy to Artane and finds himself nernering
days past: 'Father Conmee, reading his office, veat@ flock
of muttoning clouds over Rathcoffey. His thinsockaukles
were tickled by the stubble of Clongowes field. Walked
there, reading in the evening, and heard the cfdke boys'
lines at their play, young cries in the quiet emgniHe was
their rector: his reign was mild'. Raucously ceddbd by the
boys in A Portrait as 'the decentest rector that was ever in
Clongowes', he remained part of Stephen’'s — andiauipt
Joyce's — best memories of the place.

S i
James Joyce aged six and a half Fr JoRmnmee, the Rector of
on the day he entered Clongowes Clongowekem Joyce joined

In the 1930s, as Joyce's fame grew, an Americdedchlerbert
Gorman was commissioned to write his biography. this,
with perhaps only a degree of exaggeration, Goraparke of
how Clongowes 'continued to exist in Joyce's miadsivid
reality of sights and scenes and impressions, génds and
dreams and broodings, a sacred place of the cortong
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consciousness that would be reflected again andh,atike
sunlight in a shifting mirror, in all the work heowld do
thereafter'. He would undoubtedly have had Jamgselo
imprimatur to write those words.

In 1937, in search of material for the book, atc#xy behest
Gorman paid a short visit to Ireland. Joyce wratéolehand,

in May, to his Dublin friend Constantine CurranerRaps you
can show him some places, Chapelizod, Howth (if the
rhododendrons are in bloom) and Clongowes Woodtwin
instances, Joyce's selection is readily understdada
Chapelizod was the setting — if such a word candsel for the
strange book in question — of his last wdfkanegans Wake
published in 1939 two years before his death. The
rhododendrons on Howth Head feature in Molly Bloom'
monologue in the final episode blysses But Clongowes too

— who would have guessed?

Gorman took the bus to Clane, having been briefe@drran
about what he should and shouldn't say when he tgot
Clongowes. Back in Paris, where Joyce had beengligince
1920, the biographer gave an account of his travelsiuly
Joyce reported in turn to Currdhle said he had a great time in
Eire'. So far so good. But then: '... at Clongowesems the
password was “O breathe not his name™. His disappent is
palpable: he had been hoping to find out what #suidls —
what Clongowes - thought of 'Half past six' now,lyoto
discover that Gorman had been warned in advancemeveal
the real reason for his visit by referring to Jogtall. There is
a muffled echo of Joyce's regretkimnegans Wakeyhich he
was writing at the time: 'Mr Unmentionable (O breawsat his
same!)’

It is good to be able to record that, today in Qmwes, he is
far from 'Mr Unmentionable'. His portrait hangs the

Serpentine Gallery, among other distinguished pasgtils

(none, surely, as famous as himself), side by wide his old

rector, Fr Conmee. And the school library — the dadoyce
Library — now contains his books and bears his name
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FIFTY YEARS AT BLACKHALL STUD
John Noonan

Mick Murphy has worked at Blackhall Stud for fifjxears, the
last fifteen as manager. During that time ownersthpnged
from Lord Astor to Sheikh Mohammed and many champio
horses passed through Blackhall.

Lord Astor with his third wife Bronwen on their wed ding day in 1960

In June 1965 when Mick began work in Blackhall Vih
Astor, 3% Viscount Astor, had been the owner for fifteenrgea
He was a successful owner and breeder of race $)disas
were reared at Blackhall to yearling stage andntlaees were
sent to Blackhall if they were to visit Irish stals. Lord
Astor's principal residence was the Cliveden Estate
Buckinghamshire, England; he also owned Clivedeard St
Taplow near Maidenhead. Most of Astor’'s horses vieaimed
in England firstly by R. J. Colling, a well knowrrainer and
then by Major Dick Hern at West Hisley, some weggnied in
Ireland by John Oxx who trained for both Astor ahid
partners the Wernhers. The Blackhall Estate comgri320
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acres and had 200 cattle and 50-60 digsng the summer for

a few monthsThe purpose of these animals was to use up the

horse manure.

Mick was 14 years old when he obtained summer wairk
Blackhall. The work involved collecting horse drapgs from
the paddocks and stables with a pony and cart. Was
essential work as the horses were liable to pickpamasites
from the manure, mixed grazing with the cattle distped to
remove parasites. Mick had planned to go to Teehr8chool
in Naas to study to be a carpenter but at the étldecsummer
Robert (Bob) Jeffries, who was manager at the tasked him
if the would stay on permanently. Mick who was @&agn
money for the first time jumped at the offer butbBaeffries
said that he should consult his mother. Mick’s reotlvho had
8 or 9 children in the house with only one earrgnead, and
Mick who had been receiving wages of £3-10s duting
summer started on a wage of £6. Working hours \8dd8am
to 5.30pm weekdays, Saturday 8.00am to 12 Noorauple of
hours were worked on Sunday morning to let outhtlages and
feed cattle in the winter and for a short timehe tvening to
bring the horses inside in the winter. The horsesld/be out
all the time in the summer time. The workers haergwecond
weekend off.

Mick remembers Lord Astor as a generous employén tiie
employees being supplied with free fuel and milkiesv cows
were kept for the milk; when this was supersededthsy
delivery of milk by Hughes Dairies Astor paid theemnmore
money. Electricity was free to those living on tb&tate and
there was a water scheme with a pump hose on ffe with

water distributed throughout the estate serviciathtooms in
the houses; drinking water was supplied from a welthe

main yard.

Bill (Busty) Higgins was the stud groom; Larry Slewas
assistant stud groom; Jonnie Nevin was the heatkegar and
grounds man; Mick Gilligan was the main tractor maahn
Connerney looked after the hunter owned by Bobediel
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riding out and preparing the horse for huntinghe winter; he
also did most of the driving. All six staff membersd their
families lived on the farm. Today there are fountéell time
staff members employed at Blackhall.

Lord Astor was forward thinking and had installetivalight’
lighting system which was operated by a timer cgrom at
7.00am in the winter. Larry Slevin who lived in tiiard and
Bill Higgins who also lived on the farm, fed therbes on
alternate weeks.

All the old stud farms at that time had one big mgard
around which everything centred in the winter wpddocks
around it into which the horses were let out. Taslyhad a big
hay barn, there was a machinery shed and a loftae the
oats.A lorry would deliver a hundred and twenty 16 stone bags
which had to be put up in the loft; this was dorenmally and
later by hoisting with a small pulley on a Masseyrduson
tractor. Mick recalls that the older men took greatde in
cleaning out the stables in those days. There waartto
installing the bedding which was built up around walls with
a ‘nest’ in the middle for the horses.

Lord Astor who had been a Conservative Member of
Parliament before becoming a member of the Houdeoads

on the death of his father always visited Blackhallthe
Autumn for a week or ten days with his wife and ilgmHis
mother Nancy Astor, an American born English sdeialvas
the first woman to take her seat in the BritishliRarent.

Astor and the Cliveden Estate featured in the ihasn
Profumo case. In July 1961 a young model, Chriskieeler,
was introduced to John Profumo, the British Secyaté State
for War, by Astor's doctor Stephen Ward while shasw
swimming nude in the heated swimming pool on th&ates
The couple began an affair. By an unfortunate d¢dence the
young lady also had a relationship with Yevgenynbfé a
Soviet spy. Profumo was forced to resign after eaiding the
House of Commons in March 1963 over the incidemnt @e
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Macmillan Government was fatally damaged losingceffto
Labour the following year. Astor was further embased
when Keeler’s friend 19 year old Mandy Rice-Davadieged
that she and Astor had been having an affair. Whesas put
to her that Astor had denied this she earned ary émtthe
Oxford Book of Quotations by replying ‘well he wall
wouldn’'t he?’ Ironically the swimming pool had beénilt
with Astor’s winnings when his horse Ambiguity wdhe
Epsom Oaks in 1953. Perhaps if the horse had lissbria
would have been different! The horse was still EcBhall in
1966 when Astor died.

On Astor’s death all his mares and foals were bbbghBill

Hackman and shipped to the United States. Hackrokhadl

the horses except for Silk Hat which he was unablesell.

Subsequently she turned out to be the best of thiemng two
legs of the fillies Triple Crown; unfortunately shest an eye
having got a speck of glass in it on the gallopd eould not
take part in the third leg.




The famous mare Meld, which was at Blackhall besmhtp
Lady Zia Wernher, a friend of Lord Astor. She wagraat
grand-daughter of Tsar Nicholas | of Russia butpsd the
fate of other Russian royals in the Revolution 17 because
her parents had been exiled from Russia after mjpofm San
Remo in 1891! She and her husband General Sir #arol
Wernher owned a stud at Newmarket. The Wernherlyami
fortune had been made by his German grandfathedufins
Wernher, a financier and mining magnate, who hadlema
vast fortune in South Africa in partnership withfrdd Beit. On
Lord Astor's death the Wernhers who had been LostbAs
silent partners bought out the rest of the owngrshthe stud

Meld’s major wins were: the Coronation Stakes (955t
Leger Stakes (1955); the Thousand Guineas (1958)tla
Epsom Oaks (1955). Meld’s win in the St Leger made
trainer Cecil Boyd Rochford the first trainer ingtand to win
more than £1 million for his patrons. Meld was =digently
sent to various stallions and produced 6 winnerg/todm the
most successful was Charlottown who was champianysar
old in 1965 going on to have 7 wins including ti&6& Epsom

Lady Zia Wernher with Charlottown
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Derby. Charlottown was bred and raised at BlackHmadl sire
was the 1960 French Derby winner Charlottesvilleovstood
at Ballymany Stud and was owned by the Aga Khan.

Meld had a son Donate by Princely Gift a stallidmovstood at
Old Connell Stud in Newbridge which is now also edrby
Sheikh Mohammed; unfortunately Donate was killed tbe
gallops as a two year old and so he was lost. Aanatbn of
Meld’s was an unraced horse that was sent to Nealagd to
stand at stud where he became champion brood niae s
whose progeny was much sought after.

Meld died in 1983 aged 31. After collapsing in k&able she
was attended for some hours by a vet but had ®ubieanized
by injection. Mick was present when she was buaitetthe back
of the main yard, the site is marked with a heausto

A stone marks Meld's buriallace at Blackhall Stud
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Lord Astor won the Irish St Leger in 1965 with Q@ydiouse
and in the same year his brother JJ Astor won thecBster St
Leger with Provoke. So the two brothers won the&jer in
the one year.

During the Pope’s visit to Ireland in 1979 Mick wasEngland
at the Newmarket Yearling Sales with Kalagow, abeaten
two year old, which sold for £11,500. They had ¢hnerses in
that sale and two of them ran in the same Derlgnaféferred
to as'Shergar’'s DerbyKalagow got injured in that Derby. He
was knocked into and badly gashed a leg. It wasghibhe
would never race again. However he recovered am deck
as a 4 year old. In 1982 Kalagow won the Brigaderard
Stakes at Sandown and recorded the track recordlovele 2
furlongs. Subsequently he won the ‘Eclipse’ stakés.then
beat a very good horse ‘Assert’ in the King Gedvgjand won
the Queen Elizabeth Stakes. Kalagow subsequently tve
Cognac Award and they got a big case of brandyitdPée
won the Irish St Leger in 1989.

Sheikh Mohammed of Dubai bought Blackhall in 1991 a
made major changes. He didn’'t change the farm nbuthe
refurbished it replacing all the fences with neves@and put in
two miles of tarmacked roads. He extended the atd which
now contains 30 stables and built two new ones; the
Charlottown Yard and the Meld yard each containBig
stables.

Sheikh Mohammed has had great success winning pikent
Oaks with Moonshell in 1995. He has had a Group Wineer
every year since and numerous Group Twos, Threes an
Listed. There were two Group One winners in 2012
Montorosso and Hunters Life.

Sheikh Mohammed’'s best horse Dubai Millennium won
numerous races including the Dubai World Cup buts wa
unlucky as after only one season in stud he diedEss
Sickness, a disease we don’t have in Ireland; tiseme cure; it

is toxic and attacks all body organs.
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Sheikh Mohammed

Sheikh Mohammed’s Godolphistables has accumulated 1
Group | wins mostly trained in England lslouton Paddock
and Newmarket, Englandubai is now one of the best re
courses in the world. The major event the Dubain@al,

running from February to early March, attractse horses
from all over the world.

It was once unheard of for yearlings to be winteout but now
they are left out at night in all weathers and lgftun during
the day for checking and feeding. Temperatures taken
regularly to identify possilklillnesses such as colHorses are
weighed to monitor progress daily for foals, weelhd latel
monthly for weanings. Average gain should be 15&gmonth
although, depending on the horse, this eary from month tc
month.
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John Noonan and Mick Murphy in the Main Yard at Blackhall

Sheikh Mohammed used to come to Blackhall every, yeais
currently Ruler of Dubai and Prime Minister and &f4c
President of the United Arab Emirates and hasrsited here
for four years. Blackhall now has 50 horses ridm@O0 in the
Autumn due to overlap of weanings and yearlingsi$-are on
other farms as Blackhall only has yearlings. Wegsistart
arriving in September; yearlings are all gone bgl December.
Blackhall never has stallions, mares are senteonthin farm
for stallions at Kildangan which is also part oétBarly Stud
organisation. The selection process is carried ioutthe
Autumn. It used to be conducted by Sheikh Mohammed
himself but now it is conducted by John Fergusaa riain
bloodstock adviser for the group.

In recent years Blackhall has had numerous winimetading
two at Group 1 level; Outstrip, winner of the Breesl Cup
Juvenile Turf at Santa Anita, in 2013 and Hunteight in
March 2015.

This article is mostly based on an interview thackhvMurphy
gave to the author on 19 February 2013.
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JOSEPH DELAMERE WHYTE
John Noonan

Joseph Delamere Whyte of Viewmount, Clane an
accomplished huntsman, an amategkey, a horse owner ai
trainer and finally a Turf Club official. In the opimoof his
peers in the mid nineteenth century, in@ddgn age c Irish
horsemanship, he was regardednas of the finest riders ov
a jumping course that had ever been produced lanldeanc
there was no better trainer of steeplechasers.

Joseph was born in Kildare in 1838 andrried Hannah Emil
Exshaw of Hybla, Monasterevin in 18G8er family was well
known in the sporting world and she hersgHs a prominer
member of the Kildare Hunt and Harriers.

iewun, the home of Joph Delamere Why

The following poem writterin 1875 by BM Fitzpatrick an
published in his booHlrish Sports and Sportsm outlines
Whyte’s career and illustrates the esteem in which he \e&k
by his peers.
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I
I’'m not the Poet Laureate, but | sometimes makieyane,
| don’t often try to do it its seldom | have time;
Yet just now | am at leisure and a few lines tlilite’
And try to sing the praises of my hero JD Whyte.

Il
Of course you have heard of him — if not its veaymp
You have never been to Newbridge, to Naas Towm Glane,
For round about that country, wherever you may go,
All classes hymn the praises of my plucky little. Jo

1
Now if you ever have a good one give Mr Joe thentiou
I'll give you his address its Clane, his residen¢sswmount.
Of names he has full many — Walter, Dom, Nick and s
You can easily hail him, but he answers best to Joe

v
You've heard of Irish victories, beyond the Irishwe
Of the doings of Paddy Gavin at Croydon or Clonave.
He is a plucky horseman doing ever what is right,
But | think he could never give an ounce to ourdyiend Joe
Whyte.

Vv
For he is one of our best riders, deny it if yom ca
For search the island through and through, wherthesbetter
man?
Why speak we of his victories at Galway or Baldoyle
Or laud an Irish gentleman so racey of the soil?

VI
When first he won at Punchestown sure | was tleseée
He ran the farmer’s race on a horse called NMD
A most exciting contest with Rosewood and Malone
But Joseph rode in brilliant style and landed “tbeld roan.”
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[Joe Whyte's first win at Punchestown was in 1866rohis own
horse NMD., a grey gelding by Slinge, in the Farmer Plate
(subsequently the Bishopscourt Cup). In an excitingace NDM
beat the five year old mare Rosewood by a neck.]

Vi
When riding at Limerick he got a nasty fall
Where Alice at the Tradesman’s was knocked ovigreatvall.
Then the Gary Castle Handicap he won at Athlone
Where he also won the Challenge cup on Red Tapddtone.

[In 1864 Joe was riding his mare Alice on whom hedd won
the Birr Stakes at Parsonstown in the Tradesman’'s
Steeplechase when he suffered a bad fall. There wetwenty
runners in the event which was won by Captain Willms
gelding Cheerful Boy. Joe subsequently had a bad Ifaat
Baldoyle in the late 1870s. This resulted in his tieement as a
jockey as he suffered concussion.]

VIII
When he first gained “celebrity” and got “world wed
renown,”
‘Twas when he won the Downshire on Tom Thumb at
Punchestown;
Then the “sporting scribes” all called him “the lig Mr
Whyte,”
But good judges praised his horsemanship as wasnd
right.

[Joe won the Downshire Cup on Tom Thumb (a geldingwned
by Mr Campbell) in 1867 easily beating twenty-nineothers.
This was an important success.]

IX
In “’sixty-eight” | think it was, folks came fronaf and near
To see the great cup race ‘twas ‘twixt Olympia &udestar,
He donned the ‘black and vertical’, rode pluckilydarare,
Was only beaten by a length by Harper’s little mare

[The’ great cup race’ referred to above was the Coyngham
Cup of 1868 at Punchestown. It was said that suchtard
fought finish had never been seen. The favourite I¢dmpia
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ridden by Major Trock beat Polestar ridden by Josefh
Delamere Whyte by a bare length after a gruellingdur mile
race.]

X
But of all the races our friend Joe Delamere halen,
The best was for the Conyngham, on the game tileeHiitten;
For miles he made the running, escaping falls amacks
But alas “got done” just on the post by Harford @ild Box.
Xl
You've often heard of Fairyland, Gamekeeper’'s gggtason,
You've heard, too, that at Cork Park the Grand 8t&up he
won;
Within the bounds of “Fair Kildare” though he sedreach
hill and plain,
Joe Whyte can never hope to find so good a horamag

[Joe Whyte bred and owned Fairyland and raced himn his
own colours- scarlet with a white cap. Fairyland wa a chestnut
by Gamekeeper, dam Birdcatcher. He made his first
appearance at Baldoyle in 1870 winning the Tantivy
Steeplechase. He went on to win the Downshire at
Punchestown and the Grand Stand Plate in Cork. Hisvinning
run ended when, carrying 15st 1lb, he came second Cabin
Boy, carrying 14st at Cork. He later went on to winthe
Ballybar Steeplechase at Carlow ridden by Joe.]

Xl
Old Polestar — you remember — the lovely littledila
He won at least twelve races with Joe upon his pack
He was indeed a rare bred one (Alma Legatee);
Three cheers for Moffatt’s little horse his like may ne’er
see.

Xl
| landed a “cool hundred” last May, my friends, antbre,
When Joe won the Kilmoylan Stakes down south at
Curraghmore;
Like a kind friend he gave the tip “to plunge ordia
Spencer”-
“I know the course is ugly but the mare’s a perfiectcer.”
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XIV
When He Won the Dublin Plate in August at Baldoyle,
He charmed each sportsman true and tried who stooldish
soil;
For J. D. Whyte’s known everywhere — north, south @ast
and west —
Respected by the rich is he and by the poor he'ssed.

XV
The Viewmount stalls had many a crack. Ah! Whoctcoaime
them all?
Agile and Comet, Fairyland and Nicholas Mulhall;
The Kitten too and NMD, and others | could tell,
With Heller of the Juggler blood (please note tbeant sell).

[Joe won the Galway Plate on Comet in 1870]

XVI
So here’s to Ireland’s second jock (for Garret Meds there,
And he is most undoubtedly our greatest amateur);
But Joe is a “good second”- “no jealousy can brew”
Dissension ‘twixt Perfection — one - Perfection N@mTwo.

[Garret Moore was the famous jockey and trainer whahailed
from the Curragh. He won the 1879 Aintree Grand Naibnal
on ‘Liberator’, a horse that he bought at a DublinAuction for
£600 in 1876.]

XVII
So here’s to Joseph Delamere more luck and lenigifeb
And luck and life e’en brighter to his fair and daeless wife.
So fill your glasses all again. Success to bothrahur
The Pluckiness of Viewmount and the sweetnesshddHy
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The Conyngham Cup 1872

The Starter, Joseph Delamere Whyte is on the leftf the painting

The Stone Wall

The Banks
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On retiring as a jockey Joe had a number of harsésining
one of the best of which was a mare ‘Lady Superisihen he
gave up training around 1882 he was appointedesttotthe
turf club and started races up to a few years béelfiis death.
At least one such event was close to home. There ama
advertisement in the Kildare Observer in 1887 f@Glahe
Steeplechases’ under the National Hunt SteeplecRades
over a course made on the lands of Moatfield arediount.
The meeting held on Monday” ™November 1887 comprised
five events and J D Whyte was the Hon. Starter Hod.
Secretary.

Joe was active in other local sporting events. Hes Wice
President of Clane Athletic Sports which conductthletic
meetings under Gaelic Athletic Association Rules the
1880s> He was an active member of Naas Board of Guardians
up to the passing of the Local Government Act aad wice-
chairman for some years.

Joseph’s wife Hannah died in October 1911. Theotalg
year on ¥ July, while attending 11 o’clock Mass in Clane, he
became unwell and was escorted home by his soreHeHbe
appeared to recover and was up and about on Swawesyng
and Monday. However he passed away in the earlyshoi
Tuesday morning " July 1912. He was buried in the Abbey
Cemetery after Requiem Mass in the chépel.

! Irish Sports and SportsmeB M Fitzpatrick, Dublin 1878, pp 369-70
2 Kildare Observer23 May 1885 & 23 July 1887.
3 ‘Death of Mr Whyte’ Kildare Observer13 July 1912.
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FLIGHT LIEUTENANT MICHAEL J. CASEY - FROM
CLONGOWES COLLEGE TO THE GREAT ESCAPE
James Durney

Flight Lieut. Michael Casey (O.C. 1927-'30)

Michael Casey came here as a very small boy andhiresd
three years in the Ill Line, when he went to Stomgh He was
very popular and good at cricket, even at that yatie. He
was taken prisoner after a dramatic hedge-hoppingoenter
early in the war, and we learn that later, he wé®tsunder
tragic circumstances.

M. K.

The Clongownian1946

While searching for Clongownians killed in the Sad¢dVorld

War | came across these few lines in the schoeé&tyok for
1946. This entry led me on a quest to find out nadyeut the
above named Michael Casey. Little did | know thdight

Lieutenant Michael J. Casey was one of the men egoaped
from Stalag Luft 1l in March 1944 — the Great Egeamade
famous in the Hollywood blockbuster starring StéeQueen
and Richard Attenborough.

Michael James O’Brien Casey was a product of thiésBr
Empire. He was born in Allahabad, northern India, 19
February 1918, the son of Michael Lewis Casey, whuosme
address was given as Hollywood, Co. Kildare. Mithasvis
Casey was the Inspector General of the Indian @&grvice —
an Inspector General being head of the police @h gaovince
in India. Allahabad is in the northern province Bitter
Pradash. Details on Michael Lewis Casey are scéngeit is
known that he was born ¢.1880-1890 and died bd¥taech
1944. Michael James Casey attended Clongowes Wood
College when he was nine, but it is not clear & faimily were
living in Co. Kildare. Mike, as he was known, remed three
years at Clongowes, where he was popular and gooricket.
The ‘School List’ published imThe Clongowes Record814-
1932) gives Michael James Casey’s school years9ag-30
and his address as Bedford and Rathangan. He phossid
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relatives in Rathangan and the 1901 and 1911 caesosds
several families with the surname Casey residingtha
Rathangan area.

Mike Casey returned to England to further his etlonaat
Stonyhurst where, according to Jonathan E. Vanéedallant
company The men of the Great Escapgee was ‘popular at
school, both for his athletic prowess in boxinggby and
cricket and for his moral strength, manifestedigditention to
religious duties’. Vance mentioned that Mike spokih a
‘warm lIrish brogue’. In April 1932 Mike Casey ened in
Stonyhurst College, a Catholic boarding school &dbeo the
Jesuit tradition, in Clitheroe, Lancashire. He pdsthe Lower
Certificate from Grammar two years later, and tbpant two
years in Syntax before leaving Stonyhurst in JWg6, when
he was nineteen.




Mike finished school in July 1936 and applied forShort-
service Commission’ in the Royal Air Force undex #theme
then in force. Shortly before the outbreak of waEurope his
sister, Mollie, married the son of an influentialdarespectable
Tyneside businessman, a young man who Mike had kretw
Stonyhurst. Through this union Mike met the youngnia
sister, Marjorie Jean, whom he subsequently marad
Bicester, on 19 September 1939. Marjorie Jean haslidest
daughter of Dr. and Mrs. R. J. Weidner, of Tynerhout

War had been declared between Britain and Germany i
September 1939 and a little over a week after hesiding
Mike’s unit, 57 Squadron, was posted to France. IBn
October 1939 Mike Casey and his crew were flyirgjenheim

1 on a reconnaissance of the main road between |Vdasde
Bocholt, in Germany, when they were spotted by &waffe
fighter plane. According to the German pilot, tHerheim led

The pre-war Blenheims were no match for the fasteGerman fighters

him in and out of cloudbanks before taking him omad

pursuit across the countryside around Emden. Cassgribed

as a ‘good, adroit and skilful airman’ used eveiy th the
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ground, every hedge and every tree as cover, int \Wisa
German pursuer called ‘an aerial steeplechase’.Bléeheim

skimmed over rooftops, sometimes barely six fodt tbe

ground, until finally the fighter's gunfire foundsivitals. With

no time to lower the undercarriage Mike landed Bhenheim

in an open field. The crew bailed out with momenotspare as
the Blenheim burst into flames. They gave a heagye to the
German pilot circling overhead. German troops adivapidly

and the aircrew was taken off to the first of salprisoner-of-
war camps.

The Universemagazine reported that Casey ‘is now safe in a
German prison camp. He has been seen by a Gernthali€Ca
priest and is able to hear Mass once a week'. Tahdlic
prisoners of war had not been able to attend Ma#sis camp,
but it was largely due to Mike’s initiative and &gion that
facilities for Mass and the Sacraments were evdgtua
provided. In his last camp Mike attended Mass awkived
Holy Communion every morning. Mrs. Marjorie Jeans€a
was informed of this by a repatriated officer, whot only
expressed his admiration at Mike’s practice ofrkigyion, but
said that he was the most popular officer in thegavith both
prisoners and guards alike.

Mike Casey arrived in Stalag Luft 1l in 1942. Staager
Luft, or main camp for aircrew, opened in May 1948d was
situated in the German province of Lower Silesiaamthe
town of Sagan (nowagan in Poland), 100 miles southeast of
Berlin. The site was selected because it would ifeewdt to
escape by tunnelling. The camp eventually enconeplasity
acres and held 10,949 inmates — 2,500 RAF persoiir&0
USAAF aircrew and about 900 other Allied airmenorfr
April 1943 the majority of the British aircrews veesituated
separately in a newly-built compound, the North @oomd,
where the Great Escape occurred. The North Compaaisda
few hundred yards from the original camp, but washe other
side of the German administrative and living quatte
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The duty of all captured prisoners is to escapeamdoon as
they were organized the inmates began plottingotea@ The
chances of getting back to Britain were slim, buescape
attempts caused the German authorities major disrupt
would be considered part of the overall war campaibhe
original plan was to dig three tunnels, codenamenh,TDick
and Harry, and get as many men as possible outeabne
time. However, Tom was discovered soon after it stasted
and it was decided to use Dick to store the sporhfHarry as
it was dug. The plan was to free 200 men and pyiaxias
given to men who had the best chance — German ergeakd
the like. Names were drawn by lottery. One of theas Mike
Casey. He was part of the Permanent Escape Coranaitie
was strong-box treasurer and concealment officexharge of
all forged documents, filing and money.

The Escape Tunnel ‘Harry’

On the night of 24-25 March 1944 seventy-six melenaout
of the tunnel that ran for 348 feet from Hut 104the woods
beyond the camp. The escape was the single gréigestfor
freedom attempted by Allied POWSs during WWII. Tweohe
of the escapees were British, the rest from alkotAllied
nations, although none of them were American. Gelyenty-
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six from an expected 200 men got out as the esatpmpt
was discovered before all the escapees exitedutimek Three
prisoners, two Norwegians and a Dutchman, madeak o
England; the rest were recaptured.

A huge manhunt involving troops, police, Gestapamnid
Guard and Hitler Youth was launched to recapture th
escapees. At first Adolf Hitler had ordered thatla escapees
were to be found and shot, but he was persuadddebyan
Goering to reduce this number of deaths to fifttheowise
their guilt in the murder of prisoners of war woulike
impossible to conceal and might encourage reprigghnst
German POWSs held by the Allies. Eventually Hitleinsed
down, but still insisted that an example had torme: fifty
were to be shot and cremated. General Nebe, heatieof
Kriminalpolizei, selected the fifty to be shot, bititwas not
known how they were picked. They were driven singiyin
small parties to quiet locations and shot. The tdeatere
explained away as shot ‘while attempting to re-pecall the
official reports stated that the prisoners weretsh® they
dashed for freedom while their guards allowed themelieve
themselves.

Mike Casey headed south with another escapee. ®etle
dressed in civilian clothes and posing as foreigm workers.
When stopped near Gorlitz by police their papedsmdit stand
up to scrutiny and they were arrested and held witer
recaptured escapees in the town jail. On 31 Ma@# 1six
recaptured prisoners, including Mike Casey, wekenafrom
Gorlitz Jail to a nearby wood. According to Gestaggent,
Scharpwinkel, another agent, Lux, informed thent thay had
been sentenced to death by order of the Supremiaiil
Commander, Adolf Hitler. Lux asked the prisoneramso
guestions if they were married, or had they chil@re
Scharpwinkel said the prisoners showed considereddla as
they stood next to each other in the wood. Lux gaeeorder
to shoot and the detachment of accompanying tropemned
fire. Lux also fired. By the second salvo all welead. The
official byline was that the prisoners were ‘shdtile resisting
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arrest' and some in 'the course of a new attemgscape after
capture’. The remains were ordered to be cremat€auitz.

o Tiriie

GERMAMNY Sinle Ludt U1l w

Plaiosg oy Gl 7

w
Wirich

Map showing the location of Stalag Luft Il and @tar

When news of the murders was announced the enisenp
camp was horrified. Many of the Luftwaffe guardsrevalso
horrified and tried to distance themselves from therders,
insisting that it had nothing to do with them andswhe work
of the Gestapo. To allow an outlet for the fesgptvad feelings
the camp authorities allowed the prisoners to baildemorial
for their dead comrades and urns containing thesasi the
fifty murdered prisoners were placed in a specialsoleum.
The memorial was designed by Squadron Leader Hartne
Beavis, a former architect, and a working party amplarole
with an armed escort, built it in the local cemgtém 1994 all
the ashes were transferred to the Old Garrison @zynat
Poznan, Poland.)
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Word eventually filtered back to the UK, and laltedand, that
the recaptured escapees had been brutally murdsreithe

German Gestapo. After the end of the war the hantthe

killers of the escapees revealed that Gestapo dgenthad

been killed in the fighting in 1945. Agent Scharpkel was
interviewed in Russian custody in 1946 by Britificers who

requested he be handed over to them. He claimesalsean
‘observer’ to the killings and that Lux had panpiaied in most
of the killing. British investigators did not belhe this, but
Scharpwinkel ‘disappeared’ in the Soviet zone ad wever
heard of again. Thirteen Gestapo agents were fguilty of

murder and were hanged at Hamelin Jail, Hamburgairy

1948.

In March 2009, on the 65th anniversary of the Giestape,
twelve former inmates of Stalag Luft Ill returnemthe site of
the camp and tunnel. Bill Fripp (then aged ninéfg)freturned
with eleven other veterans to mark the annivershig.had
helped in the escape through his job in chargelécing Red
Cross parcels from a depot in a nearby town byerabing’
numerous items for the tunnellers, such as wir¢éersytfiles
and other tools. Bill Fripp was a crew member & Bienheim
in which Mike Casey was the pilot. He said, ‘Whesalv the
site of ‘Harry’ the tunnel, | thought of Mike andid a prayer
for him.’

3 Frontstrent 33&?&1&5&2

an war service Adminis.
3 Wr} &9 %Emf&m Jen
Ifﬁﬁﬁ
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MRS HANDY’S CAROL SINGERS
Des Marron

The KARE Association was founded by Carmel and Néaur
Shortt in Clane in 1969 and became one of a nunaber
branches installed all over Kildare and West Wigkly'ou can
imagine that in those early years there were nititfas to help
the mentally and physically handicapped in the tpu@ver
the last 40 years fundraising has been so suctdhstuthey
now have two schools on the Curragh and in Kileylladult
houses in many towns including Athy and Kildare aamd
factory in Newbridge. It is now a million euro bosss.

Around the early 1970s Archdeacon Handy's wife daithe,

“wouldn’t it be a good idea to go to some of ourigdoners’

houses and sing carols for KARE”. With the assistaof her
husband, the Archdeacon we sallied forth. You would
believe the number of titled dignitaries livingtime Clane area
at that time. We sang at Colonel Darley’'s at Botmms,

Major Harvey in Loughenure, Bob Jeffers at Blacki&tld,

Bert Firestone of the famous Tyre company at Kieul Frank

O'Reilly of the Glebe in Punchestown, Naas, the n@ass
family in Straffan, Mrs Woulffe in Kill, and Mrs Mare in

Yeomanstown. We also sang for Kevin McClory (yesé t
James Bond producer himself) in his house in Staifhich

later became the K Club.

There are many stories which occurred during thodg years
of singing. On one afternoon as we drove in on @Gallo
Darley’s drive there must have been ten cars afl ngers.
The colonel appeared with his dogs and waving & Istigk he
struck Mrs Handy's car shouting “Bloody IRA get oot
here”! Mrs Handy with her leg half out of the dosaid
“Colonel we are carol singers” to which he replidtn
terribly sorry, please sing”. We were half way tgb ‘Good
King Wenceslaus’, which Mrs Handy had told us whse t
Colonel’s favourite, when he shouted ‘that’s ratbell, have
you another?’ From the mid 1970s onward Michael tl&ee
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had taken over as our trainer and conductor anchh#ed us
through until his death thirty years later.

1 - |
Michael and Maire Weedle after conferral with BeneMerente medals
in recognition of thirty four years of providing music to the Church

For over forty years we sang in public houses a#irdNorth
Kildare. We had the marvellous assistance of astldae
Presentation Convent nuns including Sr. Perpetual.diise,
Sr. Joan and Sr. Dominica. They were marvelloustspnd
had no problem singing in packed pubs and beingdeat by
half drunken patrons! Our money collector for thevate
houses was Charlie O’Neill Snr. One night on the/ \Wwame
from Frank O’Reilly’'s of Punchestown, he being ttheen
Chairman of Irish Distillers, we had all imbibed poaus
amounts of whiskey. We left Charlie behind while we
proceeded on to Guinness’s in Straffan where mgirsg was
more robust than usual due to the whiskey! On natgr to
Clane around midnight | had to go down to Charlie/$e
Muddie O’Neill, to confess that | had lost her haist. When |
returned to my own home in Carrigeen my wife Kagisted
that | had to trace my steps back to find him.dktéhe back
road to Kill and at one of the bridges | stopped thr and at
the top of my voice | shouted Charlie’s name! liyame had
seen me at this stage they would have sent famtrein white
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coats! Eventually | returned home unsuccessful tharnk God
Charlie rolled into his own home at about 2.00am.

Although Charlie collected in the private housest tive sang
in, when we went to the public houses Carmel andiride
Shortt were the main collectors. However if it wabig pub
any member of the choir would do it.

On another night, we arrived at the Dew Drop Inrnabbut
11.00pm. The owner said that he didn’t want usibhg $ut

would add to our collection. We said ok and setftada late
drink. Sometime later he said that we appeareceta decent
bunch and that he would like us to sing and call8ct it was
the first time we were “paid not to sing” and thraid to

sing”!

@

Des Marron presents a cheque to Jim McMahon of KARE

The Keadeen Hotel in Newbridge contacted us toiseee
would sing at their Christmas banquets for a setvigh no
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collecting for seven nights. We were the secontldasevery
night with the famous Brendan Grace the final acthe night.
While this arrangement was quite profitable it nietwat we
had to be there on time and ready to go in very tess!

The next season | contacted Frank Fallon of the Redse
Hotel and he said he would be delighted for usrtg en all his
function nights. He had three dining rooms and amgsin all
three leaving the Ballroom until the last. If wereducky Des
and Billy Hopkins would be playing in the Ballrocend would
back us, this gave us the chance to penetrateuipe oise of
the revellers. This was easily our most profitabdaiture and
we averaged £5,000 every season for up to twerassye

As you can imagine this intensive singing put aorerous
amount of pressure on choir members, particuldrbse who
had also to get everything ready for Christmas.yTiever let

me down and both | and KARE owe them an enormous
amount. We have now tailed it down to just one eoésidrew
and Joan Rynne of Downings House Prosperous. Thaddy
continue to gather a huge crowd of friends. Andavd his
wife Joan provide food and drink for the night amd still
collect £2,000 for our thirty minute concert.

| know there are many more stories | should be #@blelate
but the old brain cells are getting tired. In carsabn | know
that we brought festive cheer to every house thatsang in
and many said “Christmas truly began with the atriof the
Carol Singers™ | will sign off with enormous thasko all the
drivers who drove us to all the venues and newek topenny
in petrol expenses and to all the faithful sing@isank you all
for being with me throughout our incredible journey
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A WHISTLER REMEMBERS PUNCHESTOWN
Mick Mulvey

Early History

The book “Peerless Punchestown” written by locatdrian

Con Costello and journalist Raymond Smyth tellshad there
has been racing at this location for many yearmgdiack to
the early 1800s. The first recorded meeting was824, there
was a four day meeting in 1827, a five day meatnt828 and
a one day meeting comprising five races in 1833 Tilst

Kildare Hunt Cup Steeplechase was won by Zephyt8&7

and owned by a Mr. Lynch. However 1849 was thd fiesar

that a proper racecourse was laid out over the duabkslands
of Punchestown.

For the 1858 meeting, “The Grand National Hunt
Steeplechase” had thirty two horses on the card twienty six
starting. Among the runners were five from Tippgrand
Dublin, three from Kildare, two each from Meath aBdvan,
one each from Cork and Kings County (Offaly) arntd@from
Scotland. Punchestown was now established as th@iqr
racecourse in the country. In words taken from IBesr
Punchestown, “the racecourse overcame all vicgsguo win
undisputed recognition as Ireland’s National Huestival and

is now affectionately referred to as “the Irish Gé&eham”.

The Grainger Family

Synonymous with Punchestown is the name of thenGeai
family. While racing at Punchestown has been gaingfor
well over one hundred and fifty years the localiGgar family
from the parish of Eadestown, the same parish whatts all
of the racecourse, can claim a long associatioh thié course
extending over several generations.

Mick Grainger senior was the first member of thislivknown

family to be part of the management structure oé th

racecourse. He was the first foreman and was tbecesded

by his son, Johnny, who was employed there from91&/

1929 and who died at the ripe old age of eightyteig 1963.
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His nephew Mick worked at the course for forty seyears.
He in turn was followed by his nephewspthers Jim, Dick
and Murt and whose father Stephen was also asedoiath
the course for many years.

Christy Grainger is currently an employee and naanst that
continuous line of Graingers connected with thigld&véamous

racecourse. To coin an old phrase, “There is alv@a@sainger
at Punchestown”. It is noteworthy that 1950 wasdhly time

the racing was cancelled due to a heavy fall ofnsaod on

that day Mary Byrne, Rathasker Road, Naas was ditign
Punchestown for a record seventy fifth consectuitive.

The Catering Queen of the Races

As the years progressed and attendances got taggdevigger,
the demand for food and beverages grew to enormous
proportions and there was a shortage of provideld a
suppliers. One extraordinary woman rose to the sscnaand
became a legend in her own lifetime. Bridget Lawdargle
handedly and without any formal training in the ecaig
business became the largest catering company icduetry
and was known throughout Europe as well. No joumesp
complete without a stop at Lawlors of Naas andcsttered not
only for Punchestown but for many events all over ¢ountry
including the Dublin Horse Show, the Spring Showe t
Galway races, the Naas Hunt Ball and many hunts ball
places like Tipperary, Waterford, Thurles, Longfokémerick
and many more.

| vividly recall attending the Punchestown venuethe mid
1950s. There were two areas where you could get fpmd
and drink requirements. The “Inside” and the “Cde&i There
was an enormous difference with the “Inside” bemgch
more expensive. The “Inside” was the reserved snc®
catering for the badge holders, trainers, owndsir tguests
and wealthy members of the public. Dining and [zanilities
were provided under the stands and in deluxe masjueth
comfortable surroundings. The dining tables weneeoed with
crisp white lIrish linen tablecloths, each table redase of
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freshly cut flowers, the napkins were also of Iristen, the
cutlery was silverware and the crockery was a wiljmattern
designed exclusively for Lawlors.

)

Mrs. La.wlo'r in old age reading to her grandchildren

The “Outside” catering was on a different scale tHrede were
a number of bars and marquees for this purposeselvere
run by a number of local publicans including Mutagof
Naas, Paddy Higgins of the Arch bar in Newbridgedd@® was
from nearby Ballymore Eustace), Orfords of KilcualleBilly

Timmons of Baltinglass and a Mrs. Bolger from Tgha
provided hot meals. Lawlors had a large marqueersgtea,
coffee, soft drinks, sandwiches and cakes.

A lot of patrons of the races preferred to havenigE which
were held in the car park areas and in a large Ggpate
between the enclosure and the last jump. Dozerrgwkers
selling fruit, sweets, bars of chocolate and sofinks
completed the provision of the outside cateringlifeas. Mrs
Lawlor moved to live in the Mill House which wasriioerly
the Naas Carpet Factory and the famous Millhouseh@rse
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was named after the house. The horse was borneanedr at
the Keely farm, Bawnogue Punchestown, the birttceplaf
Mrs Lawlor (nee Keely). The horse Nas na Riogh aasther
horse to come out of the Keely stable.

The Resident Farrier

Joe Callan came to Naas as a very young boy, Hhierfa
coming from County Louth to take up employment oyiies’
Gents’ Outfitters (now Richie Whelan’s Menswear phoAt
the age of thirteen young Joe was apprenticedMo @ross of
Rathangan as a Blacksmith/Farrier. He cycled framd\to the
West Kildare village six days a week which was anebtrip of
twenty eight miles every day. At the age of twehgyleft the
employment of Mr Cross and set up his own workstioghe
Rathasker Road and soon developed a reputatiotindohigh
quality of his work. A lot of his work was with theacing
fraternity and his reputation and the high standsrtis work
grew in stature with the horse owners and trainénss led to
Joe being appointed as Farrier in residence at Hestmwvn
Racecourse where he became renowned as the médisr o
craft.

Among other things Joe was an excellent singeriangteat
demand to perform at weddings and concerts. A feund
member of the Naas Choral Society he sang a duét thwe
famous virtuoso John Count Mc Cormack at the 1932
Eucharistic Congress in the Phoenix Park. Joe hgreéat love

of horses and was an excellent pony rider competinigcal
events and winning many trophies. He remained eesid
Farrier at Punchestown for thirty years.

Royalty at the Races

Royal personages made several visits to the rades a
Punchestown with arguably the most important béimegvisit

of King Edward V11 in 1904. This of course was tia first

visit he had made as he was in attendance in 18@Beathen
Prince Regent whilst he was in military service.
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In 1904 King Edward attended with Queen Alexandreboth
of the days, April 26th and 27th which witnessed Higgest
crowd since 1868. The royal party travelled by rir&iom
Kingsbridge Station to Naas and from there to thees by
horse drawn carriage. The Urban District Councduzad that
he did indeed have a welcome fit for a king witke town of
Naas extensively decorated with Union Flag buntargd
garlands of flowers everywhere. Switzers of Dullere

; - 3 , iR, AR
Main Street Naas decorated for the King’s visit to Punchestown in 1904 '
contracted to supply and arrange the decoratiorishwivere
paid for by Mr William Staples Chairman of the U®.and
proprietor of the Celebrated House of Naas whibtér laecame
my home after being bought by my late father Mi¢hae
Mulvey.

A Great Social Occasion

During the occasion lavish parties were held inBiggHouses

of the gentry and landowners in North Kildare: 8tna House

(Bartons), Harristown (La Touches), Palmerstown rdL@&

Lady Mayo), Kerdiffstown (Aylmers), Gowran GrangBeg
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Robecks). The champagne flowed after feasting aa foar
excellence till the early morning. The Hunt Ball sva
glittering occasion in the Naas Town Hall with igeven
course supper being the order of the day or eveaing
revellers were carried home in horse drawn carsiage

When the Hunt Ball moved to Lawlors Hotel in 193#hders
took to the floor of the Town Hall to the music thie Ritz

Melody Makers from Sallins. Socialising went ortla course
on race days and “Walking Sunday” was a great dppiy

for the public to get their first taste of the feat to come. A
highlight of Walking Sunday was the Millbrook Cuposs-
country race run over six miles around the racesmwith the
winner receiving the coveted Millbrook Cup.

Although socialising took place in the bars anddfooarquees
many other social activities took place outsidethe open.
There were Punch and Judy shows, swing boats gathay of
entertainers, blind fiddlers, banjo players, sisgerccordion
players. Such music luminaries as Pecker Dunnely vt
Mahon and Ted Fury to name a few attended the efeent
many years and all the fun of the fair was at Pastdwn.
There was the busting of balloons by kicking fotithathe
wheel of fortune, rifle range, fortune tellers, fladies and
giants. One of the star attractions was “Princendalu” a
native of the West Indies who attended on manysona. He
was attired in tribal regalia with long white silabes buttoned
with jewels. The Prince’s turban had a long peacfeckther
sticking up at the back and a very large diamonthatfront
that on a sunny day reflected the rays of the blentowered
above all at Peerless Punchestown. There were #Hvekéts
shouting “get your apples and oranges”, ice cregltars, three
card tricksters and the miracles at Punchestownnwiimd
fiddlers got to see and cripples to walk. Schofdstories,
local government offices etc. were all closed foe tace days
in Naas and some other towns and villages in thesgnding
area. Festivities began in advance of the race. dagrerally
on the Saturday before the races the men and warherhad
emigrated to England, Scotland and Wales “came hdme
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partake in the pilgrimage to Punchestown. Homesewadt
spruced up to welcome son, daughter, brothers iatets and
friends and neighbours chipped in to solve any meoodation
problems.

-

TEERAY P
Hawkers at Punchestown

Special travel arrangements were put in place ey Itcal
authorities and the police. The travelling commynitinerants
and gypsies arrived approximately a week beforedhes and
parked their wagons on the Caragh Road and at ‘@é&gg
End”.

Two Heroes of Punchestown

The heroes we refer to were two County Wicklow méro
reigned supreme in County Kildare racing circlesd an
particularly at Punchestown. The first was Joe @shoa
native of Ballyknocken in West Wicklow. Mr Osborneas
regarded by his peers, racing supporters, joutsadisthe Irish
and the United Kingdom media as the supreme hoese oh
his time. He was an owner, a breeder and a jockdgat few
people have done with any rate of success. Hisagauwas a
byword and his horsemanship won him a legion of ieehs
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among the general body of keen judges of nationat racing.
Space does not permit us to list even a fractionhisf
successes. One feat alone singles him out andemn&in a
lasting place in the annuals of Punchestown. Jake rihe
winner of the Kildare Cup on three consecutive emus,
1925, 1926 and 1927 on a mare bred and trained
Craddockstown.

Mr Osborne was granted a training permit originatly1920
and combined both training and riding for many gealoe
Osborne and his three time winner of the Kildare ,CAlice
Whitethorn, will be remembered as one of the gstdtats of
national hunt racing ever. What a hero!

T b _-j‘__! A\l o =l
Paddy Sleator with his son Michael
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Our second Wicklow hero is Paddy Sleator of Grangawear
Dunlavin in the Garden County where he was comnaimde
chief and from where he planned his annual assaulthe
Punchestown Festival. In a fourteen year periodtramed
thirty two winners. On two occasions he had fiveers and on
one of those occasions in 1958 Francis Flood, drileeogreat
national hunt jockeys of his time, had four of the winners.
Paddy Sleator was an excellent amateur jockeysrday and
on three occasions he was top rider in 1934, 1986 1937
sharing the honour with Tim Hyde.

Racing Dynasties

The name Beasley cannot be separated from Punahmesto
horse racing for that matter and is an iconic namtée racing
world. The story begins with the ageless Harry Bsasvho
rode six horses to success in the Conyngham Cugvhodvas
still riding and winning at the ripe old age of eaty two. In
1885 he was inspired to ride a double in frontha&f Prince of
Wales including the Bishopscourt Cup. He had fewa¢xjand
was one of the great horsemen to ride at Punchastow

Harry had five sons and four of them were succéssfer the
fences at Punchestown. It is interesting to no &l rode in
the 1889 Grand National at Aintree and space waoatdallow
us to list all their achievements but Tommy for omee
winners in 1880, 1887 and 1889.

There was in more recent times the one and onlyyHenbert
Beasley, affectionately known as just “Bobby” testdiguish
him from his illustrious grandfather and Harry Jurhis father
who maintained the family tradition of horse ridifgut

preferred the flat. Bobby won the Aintree Grand iblzl on

Nicholas Silver and on which | was lucky enough&we a few
“bob”, the Gold Cup on Roddy Owen and again wonGuodd

Cup on Captain Christy to the echoes of “Danny Bogin the
crowd. Not bad for a recovering alcoholic.
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We cannot finish the story of Punchestown withaegging the
best wine to the last and talking about the Casghilyafrom
Clane. Ned the father was a legend in his ownirifetand
together with his sons and grandson they acquittechselves
well in the racing world. Ned was a breeder, traiaad
horseman, the sons and grandson riders of horsése 11950s
the racing achievements of the Cash brothers vegrendary.
Jim won the Bishopscourt Cup at the age of 14 gidfiou
Mind Me a record that will never be broken as the minimum
age was raised to 16 shortly afterwards. It wad $hat Cash
lad could go through the eye of a needle”. All drbrothers,
Ned Jnr., Mick, Bill, and John, were well known fi@arless
riding on the race course. Ned Jnr. went on to twdee for
Ireland in the Aga Khan Cup.

Jim Cash (on right of the picture) jumping the ‘Barks’ at Punchestown.

To finish I must mention Charlie O’Neill whom | wero
school with in the C.B.S. in the early 1950s. Heswan
amateur rider at Punchestown and his first cousobbs
Coonan rode many winners, a lot of them for theagRaddy
Sleator.
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ANDY MCGANN — A VOICE FROM THE PAST
Brendan Cullen

An McGann- ‘Th Above entioned’

Andy McGann was the night watchman in Clongowes Woo
College for most of the second half of the™1@entury,
probably from the early 1860s to the 1890s. Heqgtllatt the
corridors and the stairways when John Redmond (¥&g&nd
James Joyce (1888-91) were students in the collzgeng his
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nightly rounds he frequently visited the Infirmaapd regaled
the indisposed students with fantastic tales ofGheat Comet
(Coggia’s Comet) and entertained them by recitinglless
verses of his unique and eccentric doggerel (ppetrich

helped the youngsters to while away the hours déraiess until
the dawn broke when he would disappear.

The infirmary which cGann would visit on his nightly rounds
to regale indisposed students with his eccentric ptry

His poetry was published in a small booklet calfédices of
the Night” in 1897. He is described on the titlegpaas,
“Sometime Night Watchman, Star Gazer, Comet Obsend
Astronomer Royal at Clongowes Wood”. He alwaysmef to
himself as, ‘The Above Mentioned’

The four poems presented here are from “Voicet®Night”,
by “The Above Mentioned” Andy McGann. The text hast
been edited to retain authenticity. However, sonoed® are
difficult to recognise, so hopefully this followingmall key
will help:

ere - air;

thies - these;

hie - he;

the - they;

pies — pious;

commicend — commissioned.
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Autobiography of the ‘Above Mentioned.’
There is a man called a A. M’Gann
He lives at Clongowes Wood
Of poet love he has a store
And all that’s great and good.
There he’s at home where he does rome
All night threugh regions dark
When he’s not staying all day preying
In retreat at Mill town park.
Though bent with years he tells careers
Of men long passed away
In poems old with measure told
He warbles all the day.
He tells of Dan that nobel man
Who faught a brilliant fight
For Erin’s cause genst penal lawes
For Ireland’s long saught rite.
He tells of boys whom midst their joys
He cought in mid night row
And how his cane gave so much paine
They sleep like babies now
And for this “fate” performed first rate
He got ten shillings pay
In Dublin town by Father Brown
Was sent to spend the day.
He tells of Claine and Neddy ‘Bane
And all his old friends there
Of Straffan too so grand to view
Where first he sniffed the ere
Quite near that town in Cassell brown
For thirty years and more
He wawked and preyed and curling strayed
Where Liffies torents rore.
And of thies Halls thies hallowed wals
Full meny a tail he tells
Composed at night neate moone bames bright
That glitters ore the dells
How proud is he how glad to be
Conected with that spot
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Whence men have gone, in lerning shon
And there there lerning got
And oft he preys when ere he strays
By Anna’s loanley wave,
That here hie Rest for ever blest
That here hie find his grave
We now conclude thies rimeng rud
No more we have to say
Wee wish this man by name McGann,
Long life for many a day.
Deo Gracies — Thanks bit to God.

The Commet
Now comes the commet and he performing his
largest rounds
With softer beams and milder glory crouned
A friend to mankind he glitters from A far
Now the bright evening now the commet star
Then Father Redmond the hed prefect; tis
through
Brought out his coajuter this commet for to
view
I put up my hand and crost myself and that
with pies care
And never thought the minute lost that |
spent in that Small Prayer
| then thought on Filosiffy and then on Estro-
nomy too
That it foretold the commet that we had now
in view
This commet is now commicend by the
Almighty hand
To go round the plannets all at his command
This clymet now is warmed by this commet
passing by
And now its gone to others to give them a
supply
This scenes now it happened in the year of
seventy-fore
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And this | will remember until my life is then
no more

The Bath- Housé and “Suburbs.”

This Engen it is splendit and conducted now thig wa
From Dublin down to Clongows in tandem here thay d
The conductor he is nobel for he opened out the way
And delivered now the Engen In Clongows here tlagt d
The conductor now from Engen is about fifty feetvrtugh
Standing most magnificen up now in the sky.
The pond is now created and bath-house here to view
And the Engen he is working and see what supedes d
The baths the are now ready to heathe now heredzgch
And the rector he is redy to give them a great day
The measons the are working and the plummers now
each day
And the peanters the are painttng and so is Mr.. Fa
The houses now for summer the are standing in the

rere
With the lovely South wind Blowing giving them gud

ere.

The study it is splendit and the refetery too

And to describe there buty | am not Eble fordo d

The cassell now here standing and cricket gnoweare
With the luvly wind there blowing connected wittetEre
The tents the are most splendit and the flags\® ho

they fly
And the peopel the are smiling as the ere passing b
The wood is now serounding and rode so grand and

faire
And chappel here convenent for Holy mass and
prayer.

So now my thime is ended, and | have no more {0 sa
Only the buty now of Clongowes and improving eveay.
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The college swimming pool remains much as it was 1887

How the Photograph was taken’

Mr. O’Leary and agen Mr. Doyle

Thies two good Religes has worked in great stile,
The put me then sitting in a eligent Chare

And a great cloke around me to keep out the ere
They set then the Fotegraft

And takes me at hand,

For some people calls me

Breave Capten McGann.

For | went round the serkets

In the ded of the knight

To see if the young gentle men

Was sleeping all rite.

Next i did padroll the house

Fearing robers would come there at knight.

But my days now are ended
And i have no more to say,

But i will defer now my Subject
Till the last a-counting Day.

This poem refers to the opening of the swimming pool in 1887.The study
hall and the refectory were rebuilt also in 1887 following a fire.

*This poem refers to the photograph of “The Above Mentioned” Andy
McGann which is included in this article.
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THE OLD BRIDGE AND FORD AT CLANE
Tony McEvoy

The Alexandra Bridge across the Liffey at Clane \wast in

1864. It replaced at the time a very old bridgehwseven
arches which had been approved in 1391. Had itbeen
replaced in 1864 the old bridge would have celeorits 608

birthday in 1991! The photograph below was takesmfra
painting done prior to 1864 and now in the possessif Sr.
Mary Dunn, a Loreto nun, originally from Clane maw living

for many years in Madrid. The painting was soldaattion

when Geoghegan’'s Pub closed around 1949. The vwider
ten at the time and bid half a crown but the pagmsold for 10
shillings. Sr. Mary Dunn left the painting for mind with a
friend who lived in Clane. She is now deceasedsbute years
ago, with the permission of both, | was able tcet#tke photo
below as well as some others from the painting.

The old Clane Bridge viewed from Carrigeen Quarry

With regard to the bridge of 1391, Comerford pregidhe
following quotation in hisHistory of Kildare and Leighlih

‘From the rolls we find that orid"™ March 1391 the King
granted the Provost, Baliffs and Commonality of tben of
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Clane, that for seven years they may take customootis
coming to the town to build anew a certain briddehe said
town over the waters of the Analiffeyhe wording strongly
suggests that there was in fact an even older éimgxistence
prior to 1391! The lack of overall symmetry and timed
styles of the arches of the bridge seen in theuggcabove
support the view that the bridge was rebuilt oiltanew’.

A bridge of this antiquity indicates that the Lijffat Clane was
difficult if not impossible to cross in ancient &s If the ford
was in the position of the present weir it mightvdaebeen
accessed from the Millicent Road via the Moat Comsnlane,
a branch of which ran directly to the river at tpigint. The
ford would have led obliquely from this point tcetbownland
of Blackhall where the present and previous bridgeke their
landfall (see the map of 1838 below). There is iy \moadly
based swell in the river bed beneath the weir wiiobld

The weir from the left bank. The middle is coveredvith vegetation

support this suggestion. This in all probabilityais extension
of the sloping limestone outcrop at the Carrigeerai@y area
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which sloped in this direction. The quarry wasilted in the
1970s. The weir was apparently built along thiseothse
smooth swell with loosely strewn angular stonescWhwere
quarried close to hand. The ford would have bedh yZ8ds
long with quite a strong cross-flow. Its exact de hard to
establish as in the absence of the weir the deptlldvhave
been lower. Water levels would rise in times ofoflobut
otherwise horses would have been able to wade sacitbs
merges quite smoothly with the river bank levelsath end. It
is possible that people could have waded acrosan The
writer recently waded about one third of the wayarnmg
rubber boots stepping in the gaps between the redksh
were used to construct the weir. The surface uoderfs
smooth, hard and lightly covered with sand. Thedi@dection
is now impassable due to the dense growth of wgland
other vegetation.

Archdeacon Sherlock writing, in July 1910, on fordad
bridges over the River Liffey, makes the followimmpint
regarding Clane:

The eir can be seen here viewed upstream from Alénafa -Brldge
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The importance of this ford arose from its leaddhigect from
Meath into the fertile heart of Kildare. The olddoprobably
crossed the river a little above the present weihere a
narrow laneway still comes down. So important aspge had
to be guarded and a castle was built at the heathefford.
Some of the remains of this are seen in the stgig-of
Blackhall?

The wordsa little above the presemteir andat the head of the
ford have to be questioned as there is no other fealsibhtion
between the weir and Blackhall Castle or indeedowel
Castlesize. At all points the river is deep witheft banks on
both sides. The worda narrow laneway still comes down
actually reinforce the suggestion that the ford afathe site of
the present weir.

The suspicion that the ford at Clane may not alweyge been
easily crossed is supported by the fact that idstédaurning
left off Millicent Road towards the weir through I[sfio
Commons one can continue straight on the laneNdakbny’s
yard. The map of 1838 shows that this lane continmea
direct line towards Castlesize where there was dl we
established fording point. Eamon Mahony recallg ihahis
father's time there was a tradition of an occadigmerson
walking down the lane with the intention of crogsithe
Liffey. The residents of Millicent House which igdide the
ford would probably have discouraged the use of toute
when the house was built in Georgian times. Con@rién
whose family once lived in Clane having previoubied in
the Gardener’s House at Millicent Demesne recallgaident
when his father observed a light at night presugnaatried by
poachers crossing the ford.

Having crossed the bridge the original road to Naasfor a
few hundred yards close to the river bank. It tdewerged at
an angle of forty-five degrees slightly beyond véh#re Land
Commission road comes out from Rathmore, possdadglihg
towards the stable yards and castle ruins. Wheeltiag past
Blackhall, Bodenstown and Sallins high lands carséen to
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the east. A very old esker road came from Naasslotum to
Blackhall and Clane along this horizon with a bratewards
Straffan. The castle at Blackhall would have bdeategically
well placed to manage movement along this road.rdbd by
the Liffey via Bodenstown and Sallins replaced ttoad at
some stage.

The building of the old Clane Bridge in 1391 maywddeen
due to the need to replace an earlier bridge. BO18 timber
structure, which was at that time the only bridgeoss the
Liffey in Dublin was swept away in a floddand the
predecessor of the old Clane Bridge may have sdfex
similar fate requiring a bridge to be ‘built anewccording to
Phillips and Hamilton it was common for religious
communities to take on such tadkhe Dominicans and the
Franciscans were two powerful and influential osdeho

R r & mm AN
1838

4 2 o 2
Ordnance Survey 6in map
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came to Ireland in the Norman era. The bridge ian€lwas
literally in the ‘back yard’ of the Franciscans wkame to
Clane in 1258. Until the extension of the graveyautkide the
ruins of the Franciscan Friary in 1915 these rsite®d in the
middle of an open field of 15 acres. The entirertand of
Abbeylands which extended from the drive which led to
Abbeylands House (the Old Rectory) all the wayhe banks
of the Liffey contained some 63 acres in all. lagtingly
Abbeylands House itself and all the lands attachedit
including the drive are in the townland of Clane.

The 1391 bridge is shown in the above 1838 mapaét in the
same position as the present Alexandra Bridgedosinstream
from the industrial weir which powered mills on batides of
the river. ‘C’ marks the crossroads which linkeé tillicent
Road with the Clane ford as well as providing a teou
southwards towards the ford at Castlesize. The tan¢he
Clane ford passed Carrigeen Quarry ‘Q’ towardsvike. ‘F’
marks the point where the lane from ‘C’ reachedriber bank.
The old mill race has long been filled in. The thiglands, one
of which extends as far as the bridge while theeotivo are
beyond at the top right hand corner of the mapnarknger in
existence. The weir no longer goes all the wayéolridge but
stops at the site of the old corn mill (Slevin’sliMiThe two *s
mark the two original ends of the weir and presumabe
ford.

! Comerford History of Kildare and Leighlin
2 Archdeacon Sherlock, ‘Some notes on the fords aidgiés over the
River Liffey’, Journal of Kildare Archaeological Society, Vol. July 1910
gp. 293-205.

M Phillips & A. Hamilton,Project History of Dublin’s River Liffey
Bridges.
* bid.
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THE IRISH AT WAR — ARBOUR HILL
Larry Breen

Although mostly known as the resting place of tlecated
leaders of the 1916 Rising Arbour Hill has a mucldewr
military story to tell. Its military history beganmith the British
Army presence around 1700 followed by the 1798 Riehe
the Fenian Rising in 1866-67, the 1914-18 World Wathe
1916 Easter Rising, the IRA troubles of the 1940& a
nowadays the Irish U.N. Veterans Association.

Arbour hill

As already referred to the first military presemaes the British
army who were stationed in what is now Collins Baks and
is currently home to the National Museum of Irelaitdwas
originally called the “Royal Barracks” and housé@ British
garrison in Dublin. Built around 1700 to the desajrarchitect
Thomas Burgh it still remains a building of sigo#nt
architectural merit. It was handed over to thehiritate in
1922 and renamed Collins Barracks in 1990. It isgemerally
known but it has the distinction of being the otdesrracks in
Europe.
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It is interesting to note the strong Kildare cortreat with the
barracks as it was designed by the famous archliectnas
Burgh. Thomas was one of the De Burgh Family oftGah
Naas. Born in 1670 he served with King William imltand
before becoming surveyor general of Ireland. Heeticbuying
land around Naas in 1695 and built Oldtown. Hiseoldrother
built Bert near Athy and the Hussey Burghs livedomore.

Perhaps it was the nature of the area and its mitkio the

Royal Barracks which suggested Arbour Hill as asaldsite
for a military hospital and provost prison, thelting of which

was completed at the end of 1797. The hospital wkicod on
the site of the present St. Bricin’s Hospital waggioally

known as Arbour Hill Hospital. It was rebuilt anghamed the
“King George V Hospital” in 1912. The prison andofAvst’s

House stood to the south of the hospital in an betaeen the
present Detention Barracks and St. Bricin's. It Wddobe

understood of course that the Provost Prison wed ® the
detention of persons subject to military law. Thlisoughout
its history most of those incarcerated there weithee
members of the army or were taken prisoner durempds of
martial law.

The rising of 1798 was put down with a ferocitpda
ruthlessness seldom paralleled in Irish historye plowess of
the Yeomen was estimated by the number of prisoarts
mutilated bodies brought in. The Lord Lieutenantireland,
Lord Cornwallis, writing to the Duke of Portlandd#hat “any
man in a brown coat who was found within seven sniéthe
field of action was butchered without discriminatio
Everyday saw prisoners brought into the city andvas not
unusual to see a procession of carts in which \pédesl the
mutilated bodies of the peasantry. All these ams$éhexecuted
at Arbour Hill were flung into a mass grave outsile Royal
Barracks. The area in which their burial site wisiased
extended down to the river and was then a wastetardl
covered with every description of filth. This uneogd burial
ground subsequently became known as “Croppies’"Atrés
now mostly covered by the Esplanade and the roadwatye
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north side of the river. A sensitive young patr{atho five
years later suffered execution in Thomas Stregppkgd by
the atrocities he had witnessed penned the follgimes in
one verse of his poem.

No rising column marks this spot,
Where many a victim lies;
But, Oh! The blood that here has streamed,
To heaven for justice cries.
Robert Emmet

On the & November 1798, a prisoner was conveyed from
Derry Jail and taken to Dublin Castle. He was drdsm a
French uniform, wearing a great coat and gold ldtaidand
held the rank of Adjutant General of the FrenchcEserin
Ireland. This was Ireland’s first and greatest tdjoman,
Theobald Wolfe Tone. St Bricin’'s Hospital NCO’s Mes on
the site of the former Provost Prison where Woltnd died
and the former prison can be seen in the whiterastig
lower halves of the upper floor windows. Prepanator being
removed to Arbour Hill, he was placed in irons, action
which infuriated Tone. His protestations being weded, he
ripped off his French uniform, declaring that it wie not be
disgraced by such indignity. The question of tha,tsentence
and execution of Wolfe Tone has been, and alwayshbsi
clouded in controversy and argument. Whether he was
murdered or committed suicide will probably neverkmown
with absolute certainty, but of one thing he isuasd, a place

in the heart of every Irishman. It is only fittitigat near where
he died there now rests the remains of his suctessho
proudly avowed the influence and inspiration thand had
been to them. Around the same time two other netabl
prisoners arrived at Arbour Hill and were court-tizdied on a
charge of treason. One of these was Wolfe Tonedhbr
Matthew and Bartholomew Teeling both of whom were
sentenced to death and hanged at Arbour Hill. Bagtthew
Tone and Teeling are buried in Croppies’ Acre.
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We must not forget Wolfe Tone’s connection with Gtu
Kildare and in particular Clane. Although Tone wasn in
Dublin on 28" June 1763 his father Peter Tone, a coachbuilder,
lived in the Blackhall Estate near Clane where las & tenant
farmer before moving to Dublin. Tone actually ged hame
from the landlord of the estate, Theobald Wolfee Thone
family came back to live at Blackhall in 1788. Wilfone is
buried in the family plot of his grandfather in Batstown
Graveyard again near Clane in County Kildare.

—

The Wolfe Tone Monument at Bodenstown

The next major changes to the Arbour Hill area tptdce in

1845. At this time the grounds for development wamelosed
and separated into three areas that consistedpasan yard,

the schools and the cemetery. The work on the retention

barracks and the adjoining church commenced in B84d5was
completed in 1848. The garrison cemetery is whesnym
British personnel and their families were buriedtia 19" and

20" Centuries.

During the years 1866/67 the new prison was extehsused
by the military authorities for detention of soldiearrested,
some of them on suspicion only, of being implicatedthe
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Fenian Movement. A group of soldiers from thd' &egiment,
James Kavanagh, Phillip Murtha, Michael McCarthyd an
P.J.O'Brien were the first arrested for Fenian \ats.
Unfortunately, the curse of all Irish revolutionanovements,
the informer, soon made his appearance. McCarthgate
himself informed on the others who received longsqr
sentences. During a raid on Pilworth’s public hoasBublin a
number of soldiers were arrested and included asehwas
John Boyle O’Reilly then serving in the army andeay active
Fenian. After a long period of detention in Arbotiill,
O'Reilly was sentenced to penal servitude for Wiesich was
later reduced to twenty years and he was transfeor&lilbank
Prison in London. Almost one hundred years latehenv
Ireland’s most distinguished guest of thé"2Dentury, paid a
special visit to Arbour Hill, a strange link wasrded. For
President John F Kennedy was an ardent admirexiof Boyle
O’Reilly and quoted extensively from his writings.

Despite Arbour Hill's long connection with the tradistory
of our country since 1798, it is best known to-degause its
grounds contain the graves of the leaders exeduted®16.
When the grounds were enclosed in 1848 they wéteol# in
three separate plots. The one immediately to the oé the
church was a garrison cemetery for deceased seldird
members of their families. Some of the graves tidirbe seen,
though the majority of headstones have been moaek to the
prison wall. To the north of the graveyard and saigal from it
by iron railings a second plot was allocated atagground for
the children attending two small schools situated the
playground. Behind the Detention Barracks and adjgi the
playground but separated from it by a high wall wlees third
plot and this was used as an exercise yard fopriseners. On
April 30" 1916 Padraic Pearse was brought to Arbour Hill
prison and lodged in a cell. It was from this cdhat he
informed Richard Mulcahy, an emissary of Thomas eAsh
Fingal men still in action in North County Dublithat the
struggle was over and that they were to lay doveir tarms.
On May 391916 a grave was prepared in the north east corner
of the exercise yard. That evening a horse drawhutance
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brought to Arbour Hill the bodies of three men wind been
executed earlier that day at Kilmainham Goal. Theonfined
e off A f n s-l _.: & , P ; i A

e

The author addressing North/South Federations at th 1916 plot

bodies were placed in the newly opened grave awered
with quicklime. On succeeding days, the bodies dtirdher
eleven executed men were also buried there. Therani
intriguing story in relation to the order of inteemt of the
executed men which would not generally be knowre Phison
sergeant-major, whose duty it was to have the gpaepared
for the interments, placed a numbered brick atded of each
of the fourteen men in the order of their buriad dept a
corresponding record of the names. To this sympiatgesture
we are indebted for our knowledge of the ordemtgrment of
the leaders of the 1916 insurrection. Reading ftben north
wall they are:

2. Thomas McDonagh 3 May 9. Con (ert 8 May
3. P H Pearse NBay 10. Eamonn Ceannt 8 May
4. Edward Daly 4 May 18ean Heuston 8 May
5. Michael O’Hanrahan 4 May 12. MichaeMallin 8 May

6. William Pearse 4 May 13. Jamé&onnolly 12 May
7 Joseph Plunkett 4 May 18ean McDermott 12 May
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With the end of the British administration in Irethin 1922
Arbour Hill was taken over by the National Army. ing the
subsequent Civil War, some notable prisoners therkided
President Eamon de Valera who on a return visiater years
was able to point out cell number 113 on the wastihg
where he was held. In the 1940s its doors werenagzened to
an influx of offenders against special legislatemd included
among those was the ebullient, irrepressible BrerBahan.
The Detention Barracks continued in use as a mylipgison
until 1964.

The first suggestion of a memorial to the execut=tlers
came from the poetess, Dora Sigerson but nothippdred
until a memorial in the form of a beautiful setstéined glass
windows was erected behind the High Altar in than@€h of
the Sacred Heart, Arbour Hill. The graves wereop#n to the
public except for the annual commemoration day|uhiy

were opened permanently to the public in 1936. The

Department of Defence suggested that a suitable amaim
should be erected at the grave site. A plan waseagand in
1955 at a cost of £20,000 a contract for the meahavas
signed. The memorial is impressive. It comprisesuaved

ashlar wall on which the Proclamation of the Repuli$

incised in Irish and English with a cross in thatee. There are
three paved terraces connected by broad flighstasfe steps

and a paved area for the deployment of troops durin

ceremonial occasions. The grave plot is coverea igreen
sward in a gently curved mound surrounded by adiore
kerb on which the names of the leaders are carvéiish and
in English at the foot. Tall trees surround thevgrarea,
ornamental shrubs and flowers decorate the scereé
somehow, there is a quiet dignity that is both mgvand
inspiring. The Irish nation owes them this digrdfimmemorial.
Subsequently another plaque was erected whichsiloed
with the names of all those who died and was uadeby
President de Valera in April 1966.

It would be remiss when considering the fightinigHrnot to
include the nearby Irish National War Memorial Gand at
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Islandbridge. This beautiful memorial is dedicatex the
49,400 Irish soldiers who died in the First WorldaiVIt is
ironical that Irishmen fought both alongside thgiitish allies

on the fields of Flanders and against the samésBrarmy on

the streets of Dublin during this period. Althougffrouded in
controversy for many years there is now a much more
understanding attitude adopted by all concernedatdsv
Irelands’ participation in World War 1 and whathias meant
for the Irish men who fought and died in foreignda. In 1966
the then Taoiseach Sean Lemass, a one time critic o
remembrance ceremonies in Ireland acknowledged Itisdt
men who had enlisted in the British Army during \'dowar 1
“were motivated by the highest purpose and diedheir tens

of thousands in Flanders and Gallipoli believingeyhwere
giving their lives in the cause of human libertgmwhere, not
excluding Ireland.” The gardens were designed by Sir Edwin
Lutyens and are characteristic of his style of $enggnity.

The military tradition still lives on since the lieparters of the
United Nations Veterans Association are locatedAddour
Hill. They are sited in the Headmaster's House lod bld
school used by the British Army during their tineette. They
also have an impressive museum with many artefota
their campaigns with the United Nations Peace Kegforces
in various parts of the world. There is also a p&adgn the
Church at Arbour Hill commemorating officers andmw the
defence forces who died while serving with the BaiNations
Forces in the Congo. When the remains of Roger rGase
were repatriated in February, 1965 the coffin laydome days
in the Arbour Hill Church of the Sacred Heart befarterment
in Glasnevin.

That is the story of Arbour Hill and the fightingsh which is
now enshrined in the hearts and affections of tish ppeople.
From Tone to Pearse they stretch in a line of e@EMe
famed, most of them unknown, but all united by sherifices
they made.
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‘JUBILEE NURSES’ IN CLANE 1932-1959
John Noonan & Jim Heffernan

Older residents will remember the ‘Jubilee Nursowisited
households long before the advent of an organisddig
health service. The name of the service, which egtablished
for Great Britain and Ireland in 1889, originatesni the
celebrations around the Golden Jubilee of Queenok& in
1877. To commemorate the Jubilee ‘the Queen Vatiubilee
Institute for Nurses’ was set up by private sulpgmn. The
Institute’s nurses, officially ‘Queen’s Nurses’, ianvariably
referred to as ‘Jubilee Nurses’.

The Irish branch of the Queen’s Institute arosenfrontacts
between William Rathbone, a Liverpool philanthropiand

like-minded people in Dublin. A Dublin office wagtsup in

1889 at 14 Nassau Street and an Irish sub-commitéseset
up in 1891. The office eventually moved to Leestre&. In

its early years the Irish branch was administened fanded

from London under the supervision of an Irish Adwis

Committee whose members were nominated from the efi

Irish Society. On the foundation of the Irish Frétate the
administration of district nursing in Ireland chadg The Irish

Advisory Committee was replaced by an Irish Exeuti
Committee which was completely independent of Landad

responsible for its own funding.

The Institute trained its own Nurses who were etgobdo
remain single and were required to resign if they married.
There was some flexibility as married nurses wemetimes
allowed back on a long term ‘temporary’ basis buatno
circumstances could a nurse who married receiversipn.
Most women recruited by the Queen’s Institute walready
established nurses and received six month’s trgimmone of
the Institute’s nursing homes to adapt their skiits the
circumstances of district nursing.

Apart from a month’s holidays per annum the nuras wn call
at all hours and could be called out at any timee fiurse’s
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bag which was often carried in the carrier on trentf of a
bicycle contained dressings, iodine, forceps andldavhich
had to be boiled in the house where the patient Was bag
also contained syringes and needles which weren ditent
from reuse and boiling. The days of the JubileesHuwvere
over before disposable gloves, syringes and needtased?
As well as their daily round of visits nurses weeguired to
keep records including; a general register, a timek, a daily
visit book, the Queen’s Institute midwifery registéhe local
authority midwifery register, the TB register, tbieild welfare
cards and the donations bobKhe Jubilee nurses were paid
monthly, usually in cash by a member of the locahmittee.
When they were transferred to the public healthesysthey
were paid by a cheque in the post which many folesd
humiliating?

The backbone of the Jubilee Nurse system was aorletof
District Nursing Associations. These voluntary local
committees, which were generally made up of prontithecal
ladies, received little or no government fundingd dmad to
resort to fundraising to provide the nurse with balary and
the essentials of a cottage to live in and a beyel carry out
her duties. Contact with the Queen’s Institute wasin annual
or biennial inspection and an affiliation fee wasdoannually.

A total of 327 District Nursing Associations werstablished
in Ireland in the first half of the ﬁOCentury. The first
association to be set up in Ireland was in 189llakiein 1958.
There were 170 local District Nursing Associatiofrs
operation in 1935. An association’s core functiomswto
provide a domestic nursing service for its locaaarA newly
formed association would apply to the Queen’s futifor a
nurse undertaking to provide her with a salary antbttage.
The association would pay an affiliation fee andshbbject to
an annual inspection by the InstitGtélany district nursing
associations lasted over fifty years others, onjyear or two.
The longest functioning association in County Kitlavas that
of Naas, founded by Lady Geraldine Mayo of Palnosvat
House; it lasted from 1891 to 1965.
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The system of local Dispensary Doctors dated fr@&blland
there was generally a good working relationshipween

Jubilee Nurses and the local doctors. Often théodsor their
wives served on the local committees. Most dispeesdad a
midwife of some sort. It was up to the local asaben to

decide whether midwifery was to be offered in whoase the
nurse received appropriate training. In 1935 orityof 170
Queen’s Institute districts provided midwifery. THecal

association also decided whether to charge a feetor

Clane District Nursing Association, of which Mrsopan of
Millicent House was President for a long periodiseed from
1933 to 1959. A total of eleven Jubilee Nurses served in the
Clane area over the years.

Margaret Grace was the Jubilee Nurse with the Clais#ict
Nursing Association from May 1944 to December 1%@®m
the Rower in County Kilkenny Margaret had emigrated
England around 1930 and trained in nursing and feadyv
She served as a staff nurse at Rochdale and Nelespital
before returning to Ireland on the outbreak of ®econd
World War in 1939. She completed District Nursingjriing at
St Laurence Nursing Home in Dublin. Before comia@lane
she worked as a locum health nurse in County Nagad
subsequently had a permanent post with Carburyri€list
Nursing Association from 1940 to 1944. Nurse Gragss
appointed to replace Nurse Saunders at a meetinglasfe
District Nursing Association Executive Committee Aypril 14
1944.

In December 1946, on her marriage to a local fardiek
Coffey, she resigned her post as Jubilee Nursee veguired
to do on marriage. This did not end her associatiith Clane
District Nursing Association as she served on tbmmnittee
for many years afterwards.

The minutes of Clane District Nursing Associatiamridg the
period that Margaret Grace was its Jubilee Nursee @gn

86



insight into the day to day issues which it addedssThese
revolved around the need to raise funds to meethligations
including the payment of its nurse, the provisioh heer
accommodation and equipment and financial obligatio
towards the Institute and related bodies. Rev HaRd¥Kehoe
and the dispensary doctor Dr Walsh were prominegmbrers
of the committee during this period.

The nurse reported to the Committee at quartetynmals. At
the meeting of the executive committee on 1 Decenbd4
Nurse Grace reported that she had carried outdinaoedinary
number of 3,204 visits during the previous quarten 12
October 1945 the Committee heard that Nurse Gradephid
1,447 visits in addition to carrying out the worktlee midwife
who was absent on a post graduate course. On 3aryaih946
the nurse reported a total of 2,309 visits and request for
four pillow cases and four face towels was sanetibhy the
committee.

Peg Coffey née Grace with her husband Dick

On the 5 July 1944 the Hon, Treasurer informedAG& that
funds stood as follows: £110-12-8 in the Depositdmt, £22-
2-8 for the Samaritan Account which was for thedfgerof the
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needy but the Current Account was overdrawn. Howaard
drive which had been run by Mr O’Neill and Mr Fdrread
raised £52-13- 6 which would enable the SamaritamdRo be
put on a sound footing and money to be put in thedédt
Account. The collectors were praised for the fabatt
subscriptions were £30-4-8 for the year. On 1 Ddunit was
reported that a grant of £5 had been received fr@aNational
Health Insurance Society towards the nursing ofured
persons. A letter had been received asking folbaaiption to
the Countess of Kenmare’'s Memorial Fund for Retixenises
and £10 would be taken from the Deposit Accountti. The
President appealed for old linen for dressings #@nwas
decided to hold aédi in September 1945 and offer a calf for
raffle. A decision was taken to seek permissiaommfrthe
county council to erect a garage at the nurse®get A grant
of £100 had been received from the Mulligan Trust tb the
good offices of Senator Sweetman. An air-ring, ekb@st, a
bed-rest and a bedpan and a waterproof sheet hed be
acquired. Because of demands on the nurse’s timetathe
filling in of and delivering child welfare cardsemurse was
allowed the hire of car from Woods’ Garage at dméisg per
hour.

The former Jubilee Nurse’s Cottage at Firmount
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A cottage had been made available for rental byGbanty
council through the intervention of Father Keoglenil and
rates were payable. Between 1943 and 1959 a scullet a
garage was built at the cottage and a replacerreptdce and
a Stanley Cooker were installed and the cottagewuas! for
electricity. In 1954the Association raised the possibility with
the County Council of purchasing the cottage belytivere
informed that they could not do so as they wereagoicultural
labourers!

At an emergency meeting on 6 December 1946 Nurse
Cummins was appointed to replace Nurse Grace whddita
to get married. A grant was being received for uhkalth
work but Nurse Cummins subsequently resigned duanto
excessive work load which resulted. She was suetedy
Nurse Cunningham and then Nurse Doyle. The formans®\
Grace, now Mrs. Coffey, was elected to the Commitia 3
December 1948. Father Doyle who had joined the citieen
following the death of Father Keogh became Chairmalf53
replacing Mrs. Boylan who had stepped down becaifisé
health.

There were developments in the latter half of t8é0k which
would ultimately result in the demise of voluntadystrict
nursing. In 1946 the Irish Government aspired togétting up
of publicly funded community health services. Gnowi
concern about the bill before Dail Eireann which udo
become the 1947 Public Health Act is evident frbomn minutes
of the Clane DHA. On 22 March 194iée committee requested
Mrs. Boylan to write to the Leinster Leader expmegsthe
hope that the forthcoming Public Health Act woulat bring
about the abolition of the Local Nursing Associatio Rev.
Handy undertook to discuss the issue with Senat@e8nan
However in the short term at least the Governmeas happy
with the provision of voluntary services which theyuld not
provide at the time and were seen as cheap andieetfi
Grants became available through the County Couyngaigable
at the County Manager’s discretion, towards thd obsvhat
was now seen as work on behalf of the State.
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Over time, pressures built up on the finances oé th
Association. At the Executive Committee meeting 18
October 1950 difficulties in raising funds were kped by
the fact that many people saw that there were puisalth
nurses in adjacent areas where consequently no rhisthg
was needed and were not expecting the Jubilee Niarse
remain. Throughout the first half of the 1950s fices were
problematic and the Association regularly sough&ngr
increases with little success.

A circular from the Department of Health, indicafithat in

future midwifery and district nursing were to benduned,

which was received in September1956 marked thenhety of

the end. The Executive Committee felt that the \Wwa#t would

be too big for this and that in any case the gashtvas already
inadequate. On receipt of a letter from the Iriskirdés

Organisation demanding that Jubilee Nurses shadeive the
same pay and conditions as the State’s Public Héd#lirses
the Association wrote two letters to the County Qo

Nurse Leddy the last dispensary midwife in Clane
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seeking increased funding to meet these demanitisenketter
received a replyl'he maternity issue was brought to a head by
the impending retirement of the Dispensary Nursgshl

Leddy. The Superintendant of the Queen’s Institute inamd|
Miss F H Aylward, encouraged the Association tcetak the
maternity work and arranged for the transfer tor Bif the
existing nurse, Nurse McEvoy, who felt unable talenmake
the additional work. A new nurse, Nurse Brennan,s wa
appointed to Clane but the question of adequatalirign
remained an issue. Q" October the Executive Committee
metto decide their response the County Council’s final offer
of a £100 increase with an additional payment gtidieas for
each maternity case over 2Bisappointment was expressed
that the Council appeared to have gone back onaalere
suggestion of an increase of £150 possibly £200itbutas
agreed to undertake the work on a trial basis (Beptember
1959 when Nurse Brennan'’s contract expired.

However the financial situation did not improve. @&meeting
of the executive committee on™50ctober 1959 fruitless
approaches to the Department of Health and Kildaoanty
Council were reported. It was decided the there was
alternative but to close down and that a public tingebe
called for 17" October to announce this. However it was
decided that there would be a final letter to tloei@y Council
summarising the financial position: annual expemndit£530,
present grant £265 subscriptions £123, deficit £140. This
was the last recorded meeting of the Executive Citieet.

The Queen’s Institute ceased operations in Ire@m@0 June
1968. Its ultimate demise was due to the lack a¥ nerses;
negotiations with An Bord Altranais, which had besst up
under the Nurses Act 1950, for a jointly recognisexining

course failed meaning that Queen’s Institute tichimerses who
sought employment in the public sector had to uyaléurther

training, a prospect which discouraged potentieduies.
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A Jubilee Nurse Wearlng her un|form and medal. 'bltmetograph was taken
by Peg Coffey the former Nurse Grace. Peg subsglguserved on the
committee of Clane District Nursing Association #we nurse in the
photograph is probably one of her successors wheddetween 1946 and
1959. Perhaps one of the older residents may résmber.
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After the Closure of the Queen’s Institute in Irelain 1968
nurses who had completed the training period ase@se
nurses and who had more than five years’ work stridis
were automatically registered by An Bord Altranass public
health district nurses. Those with less than tlyesas’ service
were brought tdAn Bord Altranaisheadquarters in Fitzwilliam
Square for an eight week course before being smk to their
districts® Thus a body which, for decades had provided a
service, before the Irish State or its predecdsadrmprovided to
the community faded into oblivion.

! Elizabeth Prendergast and Helen Sheridan, Julilese -Voluntary
District Nursing in Ireland, 1890-1978€ublin 2012, pages 93-113.

2|bid, pages 52-54.

®Ibid, page 39.

* Ibid, page 23.

® Officially District Health Associations but thepear to have been more
usually referred to as District Nursing Associai@nd this terminology is
used throughout this article.

® Prendergast & Sheridan.

" Jubilee Nurse — the forgotten heroine of Irelammliblic health service,
Liam Kenny, Co Kildare Online Electronic Historyutoal.

8 Clane District Nursing Association Minute Book B94 1958.

° Prendergast & Sheridan, page 274.

9N this instance Margaret would have been empldyetiady Dudley’s
Scheme’ founded by the wife of the Viceroy Lord Bayd(1903-1908), a
sister organisation which shared its headquartensiges with the Queen’s
Institute in Nassau Street but had a separate Htafés set up to cover the
poverty stricken western coastal counties whichndithave the resources
to support district health associations. Its numgere Queen’s Nurses the
same as the Jubilee Nurses but reported to a tbottg which raised
funding centrally.

M The grant amounted to 50% of the Clane DistricaltheAssociation’s
expenditure, at this time County Councils weretkatito give grants of up
to 85% at the discretion of the County Manager.

2 CDNA minutes, 5 October 1959.

13prendergast & Sheridan, page 13
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RECONSTRUCTION OF THE ‘ABBEY’ 1982-1985
Ted Murray

In the middle of Clane there stands a beautifubtgtared
church which now serves the community as a hallnfosic,
drama, dance, art and various club activities stadé which is
a boxing club. This was not always so since nansay years
ago (thirty), the “Abbey” as it is referred to, stbtall, dark and
foreboding as a ruined church and graveyard leéno the
elements for decades. It was the ruin of the oldir€n of
Ireland church which had been built on the sitehef ancient
Celtic monastery of St Ailbe. Damaged by the figbtiin

Clane during the 1798 Rebellion it continued toedetate
until it was abandoned when the church of St Mitlaael All

Angels, which was built at Millicent, was conseerchton 29
September 1883. Visible for miles around it was aqiretty
sight with trees and scrub growing inside and detsf its
remaining walls and also from its steeple.

-

The roofless ruin of the ‘Abbey’ in the centre of he photo circa 1980

The steeple was refurbished in the seventies bZtdmemunity

Council with a local builder, providing the skilend labour.

This was to prevent it falling into ruin and becoiia further
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eyesore in the village. The Green and the Streark Ware
developed around this time also by the very actilane
Community Council. These were huge projects for the
fledgling Community Council and improved the local
environment immeasurably.

As a central focal point in the village the Abbeyasy
deteriorating in front of our eyes. Trees were gngwvout

through the openings and a considerable amounglmfiisihad
accumulated inside. Something had to be done, tbwbuld

require major resources, financial and labour tckenany
impression on the structure, never mind reconstmabf the

entire building.

Decision time for the Community Council.

Several options were looked at from just pointinge t
stonework to preserve what was still standing tongletely
rebuilding and reroofing the Abbey. It was decided 980 to
carry out a major rebuilding project and this wasniched
around 1982. It was no coincidence that Fr. Bobnipson S.J.
was active in the parish at that time. Peter O’&aorChairman
of the Community Council investigated similar rédigs
buildings of that era and produced plans and p@pdsr the
rebuilding project. A project management plan waseed
based on the potential finance available.

Project Abbey

We commenced an ANCO Project in 1982 and over thé n
three years trained in excess of two hundred yqeuple on
all aspects of building work.

Andy Fitzgerald was appointed foreman and revelfedhe
task of passing his wealth of building experienceto the
youth of Clane. Tom Carroll was the ANCO coordimato
Between them they engaged the trainees in the usatiades
required to take the building from an unsafe shellthe
finished article that you see today. All facetsbaflding were
experienced from ground-works through masonry, tefasy,
and plumbing to roofing and all in between; thisswan

95



educational process that increased the skills leveClane
workers and introduced many participants to thelding
trades where a number of them make their livingyod

The ‘Abbey’ toay

Anecdotes from the Site

Many stories emerged over the course of the buldind
many life lessons were learned from working witle team.
Punctuality was key and very novel penalties wenaiad for
lateness, mainly the penal servitude of rock bregakand
crushing for the granite window sills.

As this was a historic building with several baglees nearby,
much care was taken in the excavation of the actatron of

soil and materials from the inside of the structivmen a large
metal object was struck by a pickaxe the anticgmtof a
“find” was high. Metal rod feelers indicated thatwas man-
size and felt like a suit of armour. Cautious aediagical

excavation ensued to reveal a Caltex petrol pump!
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The Roof

This was the subject of much debate as, ideallyaditional
cut timber roof with oak beams and slates, wouldieha
completed the project in true church style. At tbefing stage
we were seriously in debt and prudence dictatetvwieago for
the cheaper option with a view to doing the prgpbrin years
to come. That time is now here in my opinion.

The Windows

The windows were copied from a similar buildingGrara and
were known as “Mater Maria” church windows becaatéhe
two entwined letter “M’s” incorporated in the frame

Front Door
The front door was donated by Bobby Frayne anditsasvn
history.

Balanced Flue

At about a foot below ground level there was a 4ioed
trench leading from the back wall, the length & building in
the middle of the floor, to half way up the steefxperts
reckon that this was a balanced flue underflootihgaystem
typical of old abbeys.
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The Floor

The present floor is of the finest maple and halexious life

as a portable dance floor used for an attempted/aleof

crossroad dancing by the Community Council in 1982.
became too heavy to be really portable and wasl iftea
recycling into the perfect “sprung” floor for thebBey.

Members of CIane Musmal and Dramatlc Souety meetg in the
‘Abbey’ to discuss their next performance. The plage to the right of
the window marks the tremendous contribution of thelate Father R
Thompson S.J. to the locality between the years 7B to 1987.

The Graves

The headstones were falling over and some wereedang,
The Clane Community Council decided to save themd an
repositioned them around the walls. This was done i
accordance with legal requirements and with peronsgom
families where possible. The present layout praviddovely
quiet place of rest for the deceased and a garden o
remembrance for the rest of us.
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Headstones relocated to the walls

The Green Room

This was an afterthought and a solution to a nundfer
problems that the Community Council was experiegenthat
time. It became a home for the “Evergreens” whib e it to
this day.

The Debt

Very strong personalities with very definite vieas how the
Community Council was spending its money emergethiat
time. Community Council meetings were certainly doll and
several innovative fundraising schemes were hatdhethe
Green Room. At its maximum the debt was £80,000e Th
community focused on getting the debt paid andeaed this,
to their credit, within five years. Every possileethod of
fundraising was employed during this period.

The Leinster Ladies’ Mini Marathon was held twicedaeach
time had an entry of over 800 ladies who traingdifeeks for
this great occasion. 2015 will be the thirtieth iersary of the
great run from Clane to Mondello. Everybody in tharish
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turned out for these events. Clane showed what agmniyn
spirit was all about during these years.

The ‘Abbey’, a prominent feature in the village

2015

The Abbey is now part and parcel of the community in
Clane. It takes pride of place on its elevated siterlooking
the hustle and bustle of modern life in the village

It stands as a monument to the community, to therGonity
Council and to all the men and women who workethaal to
get rid of the eyesore and replace it with a plaicenjoyment
and relaxation for the community.

Addendum

If this article has evoked memories for those winoked in
any way to achieve this project and have a relatedy to tell,
please share them with the author for a future céati we
would like to hear especially from the ladies wilzotigipated
in the Leinster Ladies’ Mini Marathon.
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CLANE'S HIDDEN GEMS
Brendan Cullen

A few years ago | submitted a number of items rahevo the
Clane area for publication on the Hidden Gems FRtego
People Website (http://www.hidden-gems.eu). Some ar
reproduced below:

The Bullaun Stone

Located in the retaining wall bordering the Butiiexam, a
managed stream, on the Sallins Road, Clane, oppthsst old
Franciscan friary, is a little known relic of antid¢imes, called
the Bullaun stone. The Bullaun stone consists ofarge
rectangular block of weathered limestone with apdbewl-
shaped depression, hollowed out of its upper side believed
locally to be of pre-Christian origin and is probathe oldest
man-made artifact extant in Clane. It may have hesenal in

The Bullaun Stone

pagan worship with perhaps offerings of milk, gramneven
blood deposited in the bowl. It is intimately contesl with the
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legend of the First Century local King Mesgegra drd
untimely death at the ford of Clane.

Tradition has it that Mesgegra was confronted s/ édniemy
Conall Cearnach, an Ulster hero, at the ford inrther (now
the Liffey) at Clane. After a fierce duel Conall felgted
Mesgegra, severed his head at the Bullaun stonetfzeml
placed it in the bowl-shaped hollow. It is believéidat
Mesgegra was buried under the large Moat near thsept
Alexandra Bridge at the river crossing and thathesd was
buried along with his wife Queen Buan (who diedsbbck at
the sad news), under the mound at nearby Mainhaals
refer to the Bullaun stone as a “wart stone” anulibaite
healing powers to the rain that collects in the bshaped
hollow.

Effigy of Gerald Fitzmaurice Fitzgerald

i

RITF: Y ..'.* b .i’,? i
Remnant of the Fitzgerald Effigy

Few locals from the village of Clane are awarehef ¢éxistence
of a small stone fragment in the ruins of th& Tntury, ivy-
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clad, Franciscan friary located on the Sallins Rdadppears
to be the remains of a statue of a torso carveliniastone
without its upper chest and legs. Even though nodsthe
figure is missing it is recognizable as a pieceaofeffigy. It
consists of just the waist of the figure with thapg of the
thighs covered by a small piece of mail and théirribf a belt
and a diagonal sword scabbard. Evidently the efigy lain in
a recess at the base of the friary wall for manwarye
Unfortunately, in modern times it is open to theneénts and is
in danger of being vandalised. Most historians afethe
opinion that the figure is the remains of the efff Gerald
Fitzmaurice Fitzgerald,"4Baron of Offaly, who founded the
Friary in 1258 AD and who died in 1287AD. One worsde
what will become of such a historical piece of ptwie if it is
left exposed to the vagaries of the Irish weathachmlonger.
Would it be too much to ask the local Council tangrit
indoors and to save it for posterity?

The ‘Bird Bath’

As one approaches the entrance to the Catholic dGhimr

Clane from the Main Street one is struck by thes@nee of a
large stone bowl-like basin mounted on a rectamdullack of

granite and situated to the right of the forecaurthe Convent
side. Many parishioners are puzzled by its preseamzk are
unaware of its history.

In 1935 Miss Caroline Aylmer, the last residentDnadea
Castle, died. In June 1936 the contents of thelecagere
auctioned. Fr. Keogh the Parish Priest of Clanendtd the
public auction at Donadea Castle and bought thim bas two

pounds. It was listed in the auction catalogue &sird bath”.

However, Fr Keogh believed it was originally a hampial font
from the private Catholic chapel that was in thstleasince its
construction. This chapel was located in the olgest of the
castle which pre-dated the Donadea Aylmers confaogrto the
Established Church.
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"The “bird bath”

The “bird bath” is oval in shape and the date om blase is
1625. Fr Keogh had it erected outside the frontrdafothe
Catholic Church in Clane, filled it with water abtessed it. It
remained there until the early 1970’s, when duartaupgrade
of the forecourt it was moved to the right wherstill stands

The Wogan Tomb

The family tomb of the Wogans of Rathcoffey, Coldire is
located in the graveyard of the ‘Abbey’ off the Médbtreet in
Clane. It is an altar tomb surmounted by three estolaques.
The uppermost plaque bears a plain shield and dke 1518.
The next plaque bears the date 1716 and contagnarths of
Wogan and those of O’'Neill. This refers to the name of
Nicholas Wogan, who was then living at RathcoffieyRose,
the daughter and heiress of Sir Neill O’Neill aflikeagh, Co
Antrim. The lowest plaque is perhaps the most @sng. It
bears the following inscription in raised letters:

Here lieth intombed the body of William Wogan ofhReffie
Esquire who deceased the last day of December imoAn
Domini 1616 being of the age of XXVII years.
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The Wgan Tomb

On the front of the altar there are representatairsx human
figures, three males and three females. The mate®rma the
left. Over each are the initials; NW. IW. WW. EWW IW.

These refer to his children. Unfortunately, thelstar left the
tomb unfinished as only one of the figures, a famas
completed, the rest are only blocked out.

The Browne Mausoleum at Mainham

This mausoleum was built by Stephen Browne in 1%h®

erected it just a couple of feet outside the grawyat
Mainham. Browne wanted to build it in or adjoinitige church
nearby but quarreled with the Protestant RectoClahe, the
Rev. John Daniel who wanted to charge Browne fiven€as
for the privilege of doing so. Browne refused ty plae money
and built the mausoleum on his own land just sevimet

outside the graveyard wall. The stone slab oveettieance on
the outside tells the story:
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The Browne Mausoleum

The within monument was prepared by the directioBtephen
Browne, Esq., the day it bears date, which he desigutting
up in the opposite church, or adjoining to it, asaid Browne
applied several times to his parish minister, thevdR John
Daniel, for his consent, which he refused him unleaid
Browne would give him five guineas for so doingeftleman
whose character is remarkably well known, as veall his
behavior on several occasions to said Browne, dmed pnly
clergyman in the diocese whose passion would pteteir
church to be embellished or enlarged, and to depri
themselves and their successors from the buria; faed he
has been the occasion of obliging said Brownergxt said
monument here on his own estate of inheritancectwhaid
Browne thinks proper to insert here to show itswet by
choice he did it.

May the $'1743.
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MOLLY MAGUIRES IN KILDARE!
Brian McCabe

Every local historian and researcher will probdtidye had the
experience of working on a particular subject omdy be
distracted by spotting something else of interest,the
publication or source being consulted, on a diffetepic or
relating to a different place.

This is what happened me some years ago when ceggain
the 'Anglo Celt' provincial paper, when | unexpebtgecame
across an item relating to County Kildare.

The 'Celt’ (as it is affectionately known) is novegd regarded
as the local paper for county Cavan but it isaict,fone of the
oldest provincial papers in the country (founded 845) and,
at its inception, carried news items relating toraunding

counties and even further afield.

The item related to the “State of Kildare” and wentto refer
to the spread therein of “Molly Maguireism”.

For most of us of a certain age, the mention ofllyvlo
Maguires' will conjure up images from the iconic7Q%ilm of
the same name, set in the 1870s Pennsylvania doasrand
starring Sean Connery and Richard Harris, withthesmes of
labour struggle, hardship, conspiracy and betrayal.

The origins of “The Mollies” can be found much éarlin
agrarian unrest in Ireland and some would tracé ttoots
back to organisations in the™&nd early 18 centuries such as
‘The Whiteboys'. 'Peep of Day Boys' and 'Ribbonmerhis
unrest was largely a result of grievances arisinigod changes
in land usage, as landlords attempted to replaagitiwnal
socio-economic practices such as potato cultivatith
fencing and pasturing of land. Resistance oftek the form
of fence destruction, night time ploughing of canpls which
was being converted to pasture, or the driving rofitilation or
even Kkilling, of livestock. In areas where the ldmt always
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been dedicated to small scale, growing season dea$e
farmland, opposition was conceived as “retributjustice”
which was intended “to correct transgressions afain
traditional moral and social codes”. The 'Mollielgimed to be
carrying out a just law of their own in oppositida the
inequities of landlord law, the police and coursteyn and the
transgressions of “land grabbers”. Their reactiorthiese land
grabbers (surreptitiously digging up the land toder it useful
only for conacre) echoed similar practices by Wihiteboys' in
the 1760s, and another group called the 'Terry' Adtsthe
1820s and early 1830s.

The 'Mollies' seem to have acquired their nickndroen the
fact that they dressed up in women'’s clothing. Taording

to some experts, was both as a disguise and asnaofcsocial
transgression. They were known to have worn women’s
dresses and also blackened their faces with borkt Parallels
have been drawn with the later — but more harmlésslitions

of “mummers” in some parts of the country.

o,

The “Mollies” roots can be traced back to 18 and early 19" Century
secret agrariansocieties such as the Whiteboys and the Ribbonmen

In any case, the extract which caught my attentsomaken
from the Anglo Celt issue of February"846 under the
heading “State of Kildare” and the 'Molly' noticeferred to in
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it, provides a good illustration of the strong fegé and
concerns of small tenants at the time. The extractjts
entirety, reads as follows:

“Molly Maguireism is on the spread in this hithepgeaceful
county, which must be placed under the Coercion woen
passed into law, as it will be without delay.

On Thursday we expressed the hope that the pewsahtr
Kildare would realise the expectations of the magiss of the
Carbery district who met on 9th instant to consithe best
mode of bringing to justice the perpetrators of tluerage on
Whelehan and his wife near Enfield on 28th ultimdhe
magistrates and other authorities must be on #mné tal protect
themselves and their neighbours.

The following notice has been served upon a persumed
Cosgrave, a County of Meath man who recently tookleand
some land from that respected and much-loved geatiePeter
Wolfe Esq of Blackhall, Clane, to whom the Mr Rynd,
mentioned in the audacious document, is agent. d@&/enost
heartily desire that the hand writing of the noticeyy be
traced. The composition is not that of an ignorpeasant.
The bad spelling of a few words is a blind, a trickdirect
attention from the person who has resorted tohtest.

Sir, 1 understand you took the mill and lands ¢hr@ when
you should leave it to some of the men of Kildar¢hare was
plenty of them to take it. So excuse me for nohivwg you
about it in time before you paid your money bus ibetter nor
when harm will be done. Give it up immediatelypoepare
your burying place and | will see you paid your regriior you
have a gentleman to do with and if he does not igiteeyou |
will see you paid or Rynd may prepare his coffinvadl as
you. No more at present but do not delay in gamdrynd
suddenly and see what he will say as | cannot delay
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| have no more to say. | am one of the Molly Meggjia sure
shot and no mistake. | have no objection to Ryrditg the
mill himself and land but by you there will be rnathgained.
Inform Rynd as soon as possible for | am in a hamg give it
up” February 10 1846”

The family of the landlord referred to, Wolfes ofaBkhall

(Forenaughts, Baronrath etc) is well known and nheah been
written about them. The agent, Rynd, is obviousdgs well

known. One wonders if the Mrs W. W, Rynd, who spoed a
church window light in the Church of St Michael &l Angels

in Millicent (in memory of her husband who died1884) or
the Major R.F Rynd, of Blackhall, who is listedaasmnember of
the Kildare Archaeological Society in 1895, werated?

Editor’s note:

On reading Brian’s article | thought that our readeight be
interested in other reports on this subject. Ireport on the
proceedings of the British House of Commons on &Grary,
1833, noted some coincidental relationships between
incidences of land agitation and some referencgeetsons in
other articles in this issue @oiseannaln that debate, some
thirteen years before the incident recounted bpBMcCabe,
the Chief Secretary for Ireland, Edward Stanleyedushe
report of the Chief Constable for Kildare to illkege the
frequency of such ‘outrages’ at that time. In &tanley used
nearly thirty incidents from Kildare where he sthtéhe
outrages’ were not typical being ‘comparativelyhliy From
the examples quoted by Stanley the following are tmith
links to articles in this issue. Also cited are sorather
examples which may be of interest to our readlers.

At night, a horse the property of Capt. Radcliffasastolen
from the lands of Curryhill, barony of Clane. [Seat Given’s
article on ‘Some Clane Residences and their ownarshis
issue.]
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At night, a rick of hay, the property of Mr. Hotif Sallins, was
maliciously set fire to; but being timely discoveydhe fire
was extinguished before any serious damage was done

About seven o'clock in the evening, the driver ot ®f the
steam navigation boats, on arriving near SalliranfDublin,
was fired at by a party, fortunately without effettte driver
having run off, these fellows cut the horse and #ie harness.

About nine o'clock at night, the houses of one Bsyrand a
widow Dobbyn, near Sallins, were entered by an drpeaty,
who robbed the former of a gun.

At night, an armed party visited the house of onghi, at the
Cochbridge, barony of Clane; but not succeedingy twore
him as to whether he had arms or not.

Between the hours of seven and eight o'clock, assMi
Chamberlain was on her way to Maynooth, she waspstb by
five men, within a mile of the town, who dragged b# the
jaunting-car, and searched her pockets for money.

Two young lads went to the house of Mr. Exshawiiybla,
near Monastereven, (who was sick at the time), and
demanding his arms, they were handed a gun, a d&lbuosss,
and a pistol, by his steward. [See John Noonartisl@ron
‘Joseph Delamere Whyte’ in this issue.]

! House of Commons Debates, 27 February 1833, HaaRadliamentary
debates, third series, vol 15, cc 1261-66.
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MISCELLANY

Dog licences taken out in the Barony of Clane fdret year
ending 31 March 1884

Pat Given
Dogs first required a licence in Ireland in 1865ewhQueen
Victoria’s government introduced the Dogs Regulathect. A
dog licence cost 2 shillings each together witbedf 6 pence.
They were renewed annually at the District Pettgs@ms.
Today the Petty Sessions records and the dog eegistay be
consulted at the National Archives, where apamnf@wvners’
details the dogs’ breed, colour and sex are redorde
Sometimes even the dog’s pet-name is given. Thewolg is
a transcription of summary details available foartd in 1884.

Names and Townlands No. off Names and Townlands| No. of
Dogs Dogs
Aughpaudeen Castlesize
McDonald, James 1 Walsh, Michael 1
Walsh, Patrick 1 Clane
Butterstream Archer, Michael 1
Donohoe, Eliza 3 Bernes, Christopher 1
Toole, John 1 Brennan, Sarah 1
Ballinagappa Cormack, Patrick 1
Dunne, Maryanne 2 Cribbin, Thomas 3
Farrell, Henry 1 Coates, Thomas 1
Murphy, James 1 Cooke, Rev. A. 2
Barretstown Coffey, Richard 1
Walsh, Maria 2 Dunne, Edward 2
Boherhole Donohoe, Peter 1
Byrne, Henry 2 Garvey, Thomas 1
Nugent, Laurence 2 Hoystead, Peele 1
Betaghstown Hanlon, James 2
Fegan, Andrew 1 Hennessy, John 1
Capdoo Kearney, John 2
Arthurs, John 1 Kenny, John, 1
Cullen, Thomas 1 Leeson, Edward 2
Deegan, Nicholas 1 Losty, Patrick 1
Reddy, Joseph 1 McKitrick, Thomas 1
Rorke, John 1 Mannin, Michael 1
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Names and Townlands No. off Names and Townlands| No. of
Dogs Dogs
Clane (cont.) Farrell, John 1
Manning, Henry 1 | Kearns, Hugh 1
Mahony, Thomas 1 | Murphy, John 1
O’Neill, James 2 Loughanure
O’Connor C.J., M.D. 4 | Bernes, Esther 1
Reddy, Patrick 3 | Caffrey, James 1
Turner, Rev. P. 1 | Fitzgerald, Patrick 1
Tierney, James 1| Gray, Martin 1
White, Joseph 1| Hyland, Thomas 1
Walsh, Thomas 1 Loughbollard
Wallace, Laurence 1 | Salmon, Maurice 2
The Cotts Loughtown
Hannigan, John 1| Brady, Edward 1
Mullally, James 1 | Carey, William 1
Cruckawn Commons Delaney, John 1
Connell, Christopher 1 | Healy, Thomas 1
Curryhills Healy, Edward 2
Cribbin, Laurence 1 | Sweetman, Patrick, Esq. 2
Cribbin, James 1 Millicent
Murphy, John 1 | Brien, Christopher 1
O'Toole, Michael 1 | Dunne, Ambrose 2
Downings Fox, John 1
Dunne, James 1 Tierney, Mary 1
Fleshtown Trench, Thomas C. Esq. 2
Gaul, William 1 Prosperous
Firmount Byrne, Michael 1
Cullen, Michael 1 | Butler, James 1
Colgan, Patrick 1 | Gibbey, Thomas 1
Harrington, William 1 | Gallagher, John 1
Henry, Hugh Esq. 2 | Hanlon, Dorah 2
Healy, Philip 2 | Hanlon, Matthew 2
Hoganswood Healy, Peter 2
Campbell, Edward 1 | Mangan, John 1
Killibegs O’Regan, William 1
Fitzgerald, George C. 2 | Larman, Christopher 1
Fennell, Thomas 1 | Seery, Michael 1
Fitzpatrick, William 2 Tierney, Richard 1
McKay, Matthew 1 Stickens
Whaley, Bridget 1 | Byrne, Thomas 1
Landenstown Waterstown
Digby, Miss 3 | Ennis, John 1
Dunne, James 1
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A Flying Boat Over Clongowes

The Photograph above, which was taken by Fr. Ratric
McGlade SJ, appeared in the Proceedings of thekiglek
Historical Society in 2004. It showSonnemara,an Empire
flying boat belonging to Imperial Airways, flyingw over the
cricket pitch at Clongowes Wood College circa 1940.

The pilot was Captain John Kelly-Rogers a past Ipopi
Clongowes who attended the college from 1916 t®18brn
in Dun Laoghaire in 1905 he joined the Royal Neaged 14,
as a cadet aboard the frigate HMS Conway. In 1®jbimed
the Royal Air Force and in 1935 he joined ImpeAaiways
(later BOAC) where he became commanding officatsofleet
of flying boats flying to South Africa, Australiand America.
In 1939 he made the first scheduled westbound astbeund
airmail flights across the Atlantic being met atyRes by
President Eamonn De Valera. In January 1942 he\Ngmston
Churchill from Virginia to England via Bermuda dmetBoeing
314 flying boat Berwick following his meeting witAresident
Franklin D Roosevelt. After the war he joined Aéngus as
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Captain John Cecil Kelly-Rogers 1905-1981

Chief Pilot and subsequently became Deputy DireGeneral
and ultimately a director of the company.
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Travel in the 19" Century.

Fr. Bartholomew Esmonde SJ, the third Rector oihGdaves
Wood College wrote in an old Clongowes diary obarpey he
undertook to Wexford on December 12th 1826.

Having to preach a Charity Sermon in Wexford ont nex
Sunday, | went to town this evening in the boattaedce in
the coach on Thursday morning to Ballinistra, framence Sir
Thomag his brotherfook me in his gig on Saturday to
Wexford, where | was detained till Tuesday morn{dg.
Friday night the caravan brought me back to Dubéind the 7
o'clock boat next morning to the 1 @ck near Sallins where |
met the gig.
Excerpt from the Clongownian 1933 page .22

Brendan Cullen

Fr. John Sullivan SJ

Pope Francis declared Fr. John Sullivan SJ ‘Veneram
November ¥ 2014 much to the delight of the people of Clane
where he spent most of his priestly ministry. Téosistitutes a
major step on the road to his canonisation. Thiewohg is a
short extract from the ‘Irish Jesuit’ by Fr. E.Jeddaghan SJ.

For nearly all his years at Clongowes, he acte®psitual
Father to the boys. They recognised his holinessg \grateful
for his interest and affection, and brought himithe
troubles.........cooi Not only the schoolboys, but
the ordinary people in and around Clongowes recsegihis
holiness and came to him. Much of his activity ee#tred
round the public church at Clongowes, commonly knag/the
People’s Church. He heard confessions constangly, h
interviewed in the porch those who had come tdhsee

He constantly visited the poor, the distressedthedsick. He
ran small accounts in the local shops to provideessities like
tea and sugar and other groceries for the needyvisiged in
homes and in hospitals. He was a familiar sighttenroads
round Clongowes and farther afield, trotting at sk pace, or
cycling on a dilapidated bicycle to visit some utfpate who
needed him. On one occasion — and probably margreotf
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which we don’t know — he walked 14 miles to visick
person and 14 miles home again to Clongowes. Evéaisi
sixties, he cycled the twenty odd miles to the aitg back
again the same day, to pray with a patient in a [IDubospital.
Brendan Cullen

Typhus at Clongowes Wood College

In 1819, five years after it opened, Clongowes WaQadlege

encountered its first major setback. The reputatdnthe

college had spread rapidly and due to its acadsotcess the
number of students entering increased alarminglil the

original castle and out-houses became unsuitabl@dmbers
in excess of two hundred. This overcrowding comdbimeth

poor quality drinking water led to a major outbrezktyphus

in the college in early 1819. Fr. Charles Aylmémrh nearby
Painstown House) the Rector, was concerned andsimonse
to medical advice and the wishes of the parentgldsed the
school in March 1819 and sent the students homi timet

following September.

There appears to be no deaths associated withotltigeak
registered in the college archives, but remarkdbbre is a
large flat gravestone in the north-west cornethef ¢ld church
ruin in Mainham cemetery, on which a lengthy inston
records the death of a pupil, Francis Llanos, fiamidad who
entered the college as a fifteen year old in 18iBdied there
in January 1819. The date of his death coincidéls thie date
of the typhus outbreak and occurred just over atmbefore
Fr. Aylmer sent the students home for six monthee T
inscription on the gravestone reads as follows:

Beneath this stone is interred the body of Frahdsos who
was born in Caracas in the province of Venezuelasnjuly
1803 and having been sent by his parents to CloegdiWood
College for his education from the island of Tremg he
departed this life on 28 January 1819. He was endowed by
nature with amiable, innocent and dutiful dispasiti and of
great study and promise for his tender years. Hssahsolate
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parents in a distant climate ordered this stond¢oplaced on
his grave to preserve his memory.

Is it possible that the death of Francis Llanos eassed by his
contracting typhus in the outbreak of early 1818 wams it this
tragedy that motivated Fr. Aylmer to send the stisldhome
on extended leave? Was Francis Llanos the onlyestud die
or were there others? In the absence of documentaie can
only guess.

Gravestone of Francis Llanos in the old church ruirat Mainham
Brendan Cullen

A Clane eviction - the case of James Hanlon

The debates of the British Houses of Parliamentpai#ished
in a series of volumes under the superintendenchlassrs
Hansard. The records cover the period from 1804d@resent
and a separate series covering the Northern Irgtanichment
is also available. The following item which has bextracted
from the debates of the House of Commons of 21 Nipes
1884 provides an insight into some of the persteali
involved in the Irish Land Wars of the period.
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Rev P. Turner was Catholic Parish Priest in Claomf1872 to
1889 and during his tenure he was responsiblehfoetection
of the village’s church of Saints Patrick and Betign 1884.
James Leahy, a Tipperary man, had been electdw tBritish
House of Commons in the general election of 1888 B®me
Rule candidate for Kildare and he later remainestaanch
supporter of Parnell. Theeinster Leadehad been established
in 1880 and it supported Home Rule and Land Refom
Ireland. Campbell-Bannerman, a Liberal M.P. wasnbor
Glasgow and was later to become British Prime Mnisin
1884 he was Chief Secretary for Ireland in theigricabinet.
Knowing this background, the following extract bews much
more interesting.

EVICTIONS (IRELAND)-CASE OF JAMES HANLON, LORD
CLONCURRY'’S ESTATE
Hc Deb 21 November 1884 vol 294 c131

MR LEAHY asked the Chief Secretary to the Lord Lieuten&htetand, if
his attention had been drawn to a letter in thedter Leader of the1
instant, from the Rev. P. Turner, P.P. Clane, opHiltare, stating that
James Hanlon, of Kilmurry, held two farms from LaZtbncurry, on one of
which himself and his ancestors lived for threeagations, and from which
he was evicted on the falling out of the lease bsede exercised his right
to go to the Land Court to have a fair rent fixedthe second farm of forty
acres; and, is it true, as stated in the lettet, ltle having built a hut on this
forty acre farm for the shelter of himself and faimily after being evicted
from the other, his landlord compelled him to remd\by the process of
Law, and himself and his labourers are now obligetlavel three miles
from the village of Clane to till that farm; anfisb, can he take any steps to
remedy the state of the Law which permits the appeaale by the tenant in
one case to be used against him in another?

MR CAMPBELL-BANNERMAN in reply, said that he wasformed that
James Hanlon held two farms from Lord Cloncurrat the was evicted
from one by reason of a breach of agreement, atchthgot a fair rent
fixed in respect of the other. He believed theestents of fact in the
second paragraph of the hon. Member’s Questiotn d@mes Hanlon'’s
having to remove, were substantially correct buh&e no information to
show that the motive for the landlord’s action wasesuggested.. He was
advised that Lord Cloncurry appeared to have aetthin his legal rights.

Pat Given

119



The Poor Servants of the Mother of God (SMG)

Visitors to the old church ruin in Mainham cemetengy be
puzzled by the presence of a marble memorial tabl&ister
Mary Immaculata of the Poor Servants of the MotbfeGod,
Clongowes Wood, on the west wall of the old chuttébw did
this congregation of nuns find themselves in Clang® in the
first place?

In 1874 the Jesuit Provincial invited the nunstioé Poor
Servants of the Mother of God (or SMG for shoro),take
charge of the laundry and dormitories in ClongowEkey
would look after the laundry needs of over 150 peopline
sisters arrived and they were eventually helpefbhy women
from the locality. Later five trainee nuns came gmided the
workforce. Mother Magdalen Taylor was the superaomd
foundress of the congregation. The nuns were tpde £90
per annum in four quarterly payments. However, boesar
was not very prompt in paying the sisters and scerain
amount of uneasiness developed between the sestershe
Jesuit community.

SACRED TO TH:-: :

AT m..om::nwas l'
THROUGH ITS rnunnn,
_ MOTHER HA.::DAL’EN TAYL

Tablet commemorating Sr. M. Immaculata at Mainham
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The nuns attended Mass in the upstairs galleryhatws now
the People’s Church. Because of their heavy launadmk and
their prolonged kneeling during Mass many of thstess
suffered from bad backs. When Dr. O’Connor, thelega
doctor, visited the sisters who were ill he coneldidhat their
living conditions were unhealthy and unsuitabletfair needs.
One member of the congregation, Sr. Mary Immacuthéa in
1878 at the very young age of twenty-one. She wesred in
Mainham cemetery. The Mainham Cemetery Committee
erected a marble tablet to her memory in June b@he west
wall of the old church.

The sisters of the Poor Servants of the Mother off &nded
their sojourn in Clongowes on September” 28880, thus
bringing to an end the uneasy relationship betwtdennuns
and the Jesuits.

Brendan Cullen

Clane population data 1841-2011

Official archives are universally considered ridpasitories
for the colourful background information which canrich our
understanding of local history. In Ireland howeverge

frequently find that the provision of this valualtlack-story is
made more difficult by the disastrous fire whiclgelfed the
Public Record Office at the start of the Civil War1922. In
spite of this, diligent research can occasionallieldy
unexpected alternate sources such as the histarcalrds
relating to historical population trends which &ébe found in
the extensive records held by an organisation knasvAIRO.

This is both a research unit and spatial data poréamaged by
NIRSA and the Central Statistics Office and maimedi at the
University of Maynooth with the objective of improg

evidence-based planning in Ireland. For that puep@dRO

maintains the valuable archive of records includitige

extensive population data sets from which the mfaion

regarding Clane’s population trends presented beloas

collected. A word of warning is opportune about thleulation
since it remains to be confirmed that the territengompassed
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Clane Population Data -1841 to 2011

Year Population
1841 2160
1851 1842
1861 1533
1871 1304
1881 1185
1891 1016
1901 885
1911 846
1926 820
1936 821
WW I -
1951 840
1961 850
1971 1052
1981 2385
1991 2775
2002 5179
2006 6106
2011 7492
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in the Clane area remained constant over each €qyesiod.
Due to the War of Independence there was no censi@21
while the first census of the newly formed ‘IrisiheE State’
was taken in 1926 and the census of 1976 was deddelr
economic reasons. Nevertheless the informationigesvmuch
food for thought.

Pat Given

Whistler
We are probably all familiar with the terms, blowér runner
which usually means a person who migrates fronr fflace of
birth to take up residence in another locationysetf migrated
in June 1950 from a small village in West Offalythe town of
Nas na Riogh (Naas), County Kildare along with @umole
family. Myself, my parents, my sister and brothexson
became known as “whistlers” even though on a feeasions
the term blow-in or runner was also used. | sefiia my new
schools, firstly on the Fair Green School (now @Eogds
Hardware Shop) and the Moat School (now the MoaaTre).
| was not the only “whistler” among the student plagion, in
fact all the teachers in both schools were migrahitsne kind
or another. The explanation of the term whistleegas
follows, when the British soldiers of the Royal Dinld-usiliers
came to the military barracks in Naas for six menitaining
they travelled by train from Kingsbridge railwayason in
Dublin (now Heuston Station) to the then Naas raylvstation
on the Dublin Road (now Tesco/Penneys). They then
proceeded to march to the Royal Dublin Fusiliersr&zks
(now Devoy Barracks) on the Newbridge Road. Theliecd
whistled as they marched along thus inspiring thieakers on
the town streets to say “here come the whistleGh
completion of their training after the six montlne tsoldiers
marched again from the barracks on the NewbridgedR@ack
to the Naas railway station on the Dublin road agefistling
as they marched. This time the onlookers said,rétlgo the
whistlers”. Thus the term whistler was born.

Mick Mulvey
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Australian cricket team visits Clongowes

The Australian Cricket team which came to Irelaacblay a
match at Woodbrook visited Clongowes on™1September
1909. According to the Clongownian of 1910;

The morning passed slowly enough till the arriviaihe
Australian team. These genial giants arrived almng
o’clock, and after a rousing reception on the gall€corridor)
adjourned for lunch. After lunch they submittedwatirprising
good humour (and we may add pluck) to the ordegktting
mobbed by the enthusiastic autograph hunters, vave them
a busy half-hour. An exhibition of batting by Messr
Armstrong, Bardsley and Roger Hartigan followed ..... Mr.
Frank Laver, the jovial manager got the house tfflg, and
the three cheers that followed conveyed but femlnyhearty
gratitude to himself and the rest of the team fairtextreme
kindness and courtesy.

u gaph hunters

Contrary to the legend which grew up subsequertthg
Australians did not play a match in Clongowes.

After lunch, to the supreme delight of all, a numifethe
visitors very kindly consented to ‘have a hit’ e Higher
Line (senior)oval Mr. Armstrong, in very short time, knocked
up ten fours off our best bowlers, while Mr. Baeyslfor a few
moments, gave a display of his inimitable strokes...Mr.
Hopkins saw what the ‘gallery’ of youngsters wangat very
good-naturedly showed them how sixes were negdtiate
Brendan Cullen
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